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Endurance GmbH, Massenbachhausen/Germany

Management report for the financial year 2021/2022

General business conditions and environment

Endurance GmbH, Massenbachhausen/Germany, produces, machines and delivers alu-
minium pressure die casting parts. It also develops and manufactures related moulds. Its
main clientele includes the automotive industry itself and automotive component suppliers.
The primary sales market is Germany. The products are manufactured on own and leased
plant-site land at the Massenbachhausen/Germany site.

Following the COVID-19 crisis, the German economy recorded a growth in gross domestic
product of 2.9% in 2021 (prior year: down 5.0%) and the automotive market saw a 10.1%
sales slump for new car registrations (Europe: down 2.4%).

Business trend and financial performance

In the financial year 2021/2022, the Company’s revenue was at KEUR 49,306, which is a
14.23% increase from the prior year, thus reaching again the level seen prior to the
COVID-19 crisis. The Company continues to focus on improving quality and cost control
and on effective management of inventory levels of raw materials and finished goods.

Measured against revenue, cost of raw materials experienced a disproportionately high in-
crease of 43.0%. This is due to the price increase for raw materials as well as the reduced
manufacturing depth.

Personnel expenses rose by 3.2% compared to the financial year 2019/2020. This is owed
to a wage increase (2.3%) as well as the increase in the average headcount. A comparison
with the prior year is only useful to a limited extent due to short-time work allowance on
account of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs increased by 3.3% due to the high capital in-
vestment volume in the course of the financial year.

Other operating expenses experiences a slight increase on account of higher revenue but
remain clearly below the figures seen prior to the COVID-19 crisis.

Financial performance — measured based on the operating result (EBIT) — amounts to
kEUR 1,640 compared to EBIT of kEUR 3,108 in the prior year. The decrease is mainly
attributable to the deterioration of the gross profit margin and higher personnel expenses.
Having taken into account interest received and paid and income taxes, the profit for the
financial year 2021/2022 totals kEUR 1,147 compared to a profit for the prior year of
kEUR 2,041.

The EBIT return on revenue saw a sharp decline to 3.3% compared to a return on revenue
of 7.2% in the prior year.
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Assets, liabilities and financial position

The balance sheet total went down to kEUR 57,915 (prior year: kEUR 58,337) on account
of lower receivables from affiliated companies and lower cash and cash equivalents. As a
result of this and due to investments made, the property, plant and equipment to total assets
ratio increased to 49.5% (prior year: 45.5%). Overall, the structure of the balance sheet
remained constant. The Company’s cash position in the financial year 2021/2022 was sat-
isfactory.

The decrease in receivables from affiliated companies is attributable to a lower balance on
the cash pool account.

Equity increased for earnings-related reasons. In the financial year, the share capital was
increased by kEUR 9,278 from Company funds by means of a conversion of capital re-
serves. Prior-year profit for the year was fully allocated to revenue reserves. The equity ratio
rose to 71.6% (prior year: 69.1%).

Loans payable totalling KEUR 1,086 were repaid as scheduled. The Company was able to
fully meet its payment obligations.

Trade payables went up compared to the prior year but remain below the level seen prior
to the COVID-19 crisis.

Capital investments and financing

In the reporting year, the Company invested kEUR 2,089 in property, plant and equipment
(prior year: kKEUR 1,026). These capital investments mainly related to plants in mechanical
production.

The leasing expenses for machinery and motor vehicles incurred in the financial year
2021/2022 amounted to kEUR 91 (prior year: kKEUR 63). The Company is financed through
own funds and through long- and short-term bank loans.

Number of employees

In the reporting year, the permanent workforce included an average of 238 employees. The
number of apprentices was at eight on the annual average.

In 2022/23, new staff is intended to be recruited in the mechanical production, quality as-
surance and foundry functions. The Company seeks to continuously raise productivity
through internal and external staff training.

Risk report

Appropriate controlling and reporting instruments are used to timely identify, and take ap-
propriate action to address, potential risks from the market environment characterised by
increasing competition and technical change. The other risks in the finance and technical
areas are addressed, among other things, by taking measures, such as:

- Permanent control of production processes

- Expansion of the production planning and production control system (PPS system)
- Product liability insurance

- Business interruption insurance
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A major part of the Company’s revenue is realised with a limited number of customers,
which involves the risk that one of these partners will considerably reduce its sales volume
or intensify the pricing pressure. To minimise this risk, the Company is continuing its efforts
to broaden its customer and product base.

In order to improve its financial development, the Company continues to review systems
and processes for further rationalisation potentials to be tapped. We address the persisting
pricing and cost pressures through further productivity gains.

Liquidity is controlled within the framework of short- and medium-term budgetary planning.
Apart from unforeseeable circumstances, the Company anticipates that, based on the budg-
etary planning for 2022/2023, it will be able to finance budgeted capital investments of
kEUR 6,410 through cash flows from operating activities.

Our Company is affected by normal price risks, especially in the areas of aluminium pro-
curement and energy. There are energy price agreements in place for the calendar year
2022. There are no currency hedges or other long-term supply contracts.

The Company seeks to mitigate default risks through corresponding receivables manage-
ment, which consists in checking new customers, determining delivery limits by means of
the collection agency Creditreform, regularly examining receivables from our customers
outstanding, a strict dunning system, customer visits or similar.

The implementation of current planning can be affected by COVID-19, supply chain prob-
lems for the automotive industry (semiconductors, cable harnesses etc.) and the crisis in
Ukraine. While there are no direct supply or customer relationships in Russia or Ukraine,
an adverse effect on the financial position and financial performance cannot be precluded.

Outlook

In the calendar year 2022, a minor recovery of the German gross domestic product of cur-
rently 1.9% compared to the prior year is expected, with probable growth of 7.9% being
expected for the automotive market.

The product portfolio is continuously updated and expanded. In line with an improvement
of production processes by introducing appropriate measures, this should lead to an earn-
ings improvement in the medium term.

The cooperation with the Indian and above all the Italian Endurance Group plants is to be
further expanded, which we expect to result in additional synergy and standardisation ef-
fects.

In 2022/2023, the Company’s budget planning provides for capital investments that will
comprise the realisation of new product lines for new customer projects but also an expan-
sion of the foundry capacities of the larger locking force classes.

For the financial year 2022/2023, we expect revenue growth of 1%. With a slightly higher
cost of materials to revenue ratio, somewhat higher labour cost but also increasing
productivity, a result for the year at the prior-year level is anticipated for the upcoming fi-
nancial year.
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Endurance GmbH, Massenbachhausen/Germany

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

ASSETS 31 Mar. 2022 31 Mar. 2021 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 31 Mar. 2022 31 Mar. 2021
EUR EUR kEUR EUR EUR kEUR
A. Fixed assets A. Equity
I.  Intangible fixed assets I.  Subscribed capital
Software and licences acquired for a consideration 138.240,00 162 1. Share capital 12.527.580,00 3.250
2. Treasury shares -770.928,00 -200
Il. Property, plant and equipment 11.756.652,00 3.050
1. Land and buildings including buildings
on third-party land 10.143.158,58 10.456 . Capital reserves 4.179.062,31 13.457
2. Technical equipment and machinery 12.709.650,00 13.108
3. Other equipment, operating and office equipment 1.569.216,00 1.702 lll. Revenue reserves
4. Prepayments and assets under construction 4.239.004,13 1.306 Other revenue reserves 24.380.732,97 21.768
28.661.028,71 26.572

lll. Long-term financial assets
Shares in affiliated companies 4.616.000,00 4616 IV. Profit for the year 1.147.092,13 2.041

41.463.539,41 40.316

B. Current assets

I.  Inventories B. Provisions
1. Raw materials, consumables and supplies 5.383.328,87 4775
2. Work in progress 2.793.646,94 2141 1. Tax provisions 657.198,75 0
3. Finished goods 2.463.795,40 952 2. Other provisions 6.241.619,41 7.259
4. Prepayments made 228.206,50 1.685 6.898.818,16
10.868.977,71 9.553
Il. Receivables and other current assets
1. Trade receivables 4.958.635,97 5.186
2. Receivables from affiliated companies 4.871.546,49 7.006
- of which cash pool account: EUR 1,868,424.10 (prior year: KEUR 4,004) C. Liabilities
- of which loans to Endurance Overseas: EUR 3,000,000 (prior year: kKEUR 3,000)
3. Other assets 510.751,53 440 1. Liabilities to banks 4.699.991,00 5.786
10.340.933,99 12.632 2. Trade payables 3.920.114,11 3.366
3. Liabilities to affiliated companies 354.639,62 440
4. Other liabilities 578.237,70 1.170
lll. Cash-in-hand and bank bal 3.044.975,43 4.576 - of which taxes: EUR 338,357.87 (prior year: kKEUR 477)
- of which relating to social security
and similar obligations: EUR 28,967.16 (prior year: KEUR 45)
C. Prepaid expenses 245.184,16 226 9.552.982,43 10.762
57.915.340,00 58.337 57.915.340,00 58.337
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Endurance GmbH, Massenbachhausen/Germany

Statement of profit and loss
for the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

10.

11.

12.

13.

Revenue

Increase or decrease (-) in finished goods inventories
and work in progress

Other operating income

Cost of materials

a) cost of raw materials, consumables and
supplies

b) Cost of purchased services

Personnel expenses

a) Wages and salaries

b) Social security, post-employment and other
employee benefit costs

- of which post-employment costs:

EUR 17,812.60 (prior year: kEUR 19)

Amortisation and write-downs of intangible fixed assets and
depreciation and write-downs of property, plant and equipment

Other operating expenses

Other interest and similar income

- of which from affiliated companies: EUR 13,559.55 (prior year: KEUR 16)

Interest and similar expenses

Income taxes
Earnings after taxes
Other taxes

Profit for the year
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2021/2022 2021/2022 2020/2021
EUR EUR kEUR

49.306.318,05 43.163
1.095.817,61 -615
29.035,80 35
50.431.171,46 42.583
23.638.136,41 17.128
5.816.568,92 4.852
29.454.705,33 21.980
9.036.252,95 7.809
1.876.396,55 1.663
10.912.649,50 9.472
3.402.741,72 3.295
4.990.905,57 4.698
13.559,55 16
63.922,74 222
1.619.806,15 2.932
442.818,58 861
1.176.987,57 2.071
29.895,44 30
1.147.092,13 2.041
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Endurance GmbH, Massenbachhausen/Germany
Registration court: Stuttgart/Germany HRB 108298

Notes to the financial statements for the financial year 2021/2022

General information

The annual financial statements on hand have been prepared according to Secs. 242 et seq. and
Secs. 264 et seq. German Commercial Code (HGB) as well as according to the regulations of the
German Limited Liability Companies Act (GmbHG). The regulations for large corporations apply.

The nature of expense format has been applied to the statement of profit and loss.

To enhance the clarity of presentation, the disclosures on the allocation to several balance sheet
items and a part of the separate line items for subtotals were included in the notes to the financial
statements.

Accounting and valuation principles

The following accounting and valuation principles were again applied to the annual financial state-
ments.

Intangible fixed assets acquired for a consideration are recognised at acquisition cost and amor-
tised on a straight-line basis over the useful life, which is derived from the tax amortisation tables
published by the German tax authorities.

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at acquisition cost, with depreciable assets being
depreciated. Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their expected useful life, which is derived from the German tax depreciation tables. Assets with
an individual net value of up to EUR 800.00 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. Addi-
tions to property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a pro rata basis.

Shares in affiliated companies are recognised at acquisition cost. Write-downs are only made
in case of expected permanent impairment.

Inventories are recognised at the lower of acquisition or production cost and current value.

Inventories of raw materials, consumables and supplies have been capitalised at the lower of
average cost price or current value as at the reporting date.

In measuring work in progress and finished goods, appropriate portions of production over-
head and indirect material as well as depreciation, in addition to direct material, direct labour and
special direct production cost, have also been taken into account to the extent that they result
from production.
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For prepayments on moulds, the respective stage of completion has been taken into account.
Moulds purchased from third parties have been accounted for at the lower of acquisition cost or
market price.

Adequate provisions have been made for all potential losses, i.e. deductions for costs to sell have
been made from anticipated sales prices.

Appropriate allowances have been made for all inventory risks identifiable as at the reporting date
which result from above average days in inventories, reduced usability and lower replacement
costs.

Apart from retention of title as is customary in the trade, inventories are free from third-party rights.

Receivables and other current assets are recognised at nominal value. All risk items have been
taken into account by making appropriate specific allowances; the general credit risk has been
covered by making general allowances.

Cash-in-hand and bank balances were stated at nominal value.

Prepaid expenses were recorded for costs before the balance sheet date that constitute ex-
penses for a certain period of time after that date.

Treasury shares have been openly deducted from issued capital in accordance with Sec. 272
(1a) HGB.

Other provisions cover all contingent liabilities. They have been stated at settlement value nec-
essary according to sound business judgement (i.e. including future costs and price increases).

Liabilities have been recognised at settlement value.

Differences between the values recognised under German commercial law and tax law are rec-
ognised under provisions. This results in deferred tax assets. They are determined using the spe-
cific tax rates of the Company. The Company did not exercise the option conferred by Sec. 274
HGB.

Notes to the balance sheet
Fixed assets

The movements in the individual fixed asset items are presented in the statement of movements
in fixed assets, stating amortisation, depreciation and write-downs of the reporting year (appendix
to the notes).
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Receivables and other current assets

Like in the prior year, all trade receivables and other assets have a residual term of up to one
year. Receivables from affiliated companies include trade, cash pooling receivables of
kKEUR 1,868 (prior year: kKEUR 4,004) and a loan granted to Endurance Overseas of KEUR 3,000
(prior year: KEUR 3,000).

Equity

The subscribed capital of the Company amounts to KEUR 12,528 (prior year: KEUR 3,250). The
shareholder is Endurance Technologies Ltd., Aurangabad/India. It holds shares with a nominal
value of KEUR 11,757 (prior year: KEUR 3,050). Shares with a nominal value of KEUR 771 (prior
year: KEUR 200) are held by the Company itself.

Under Sec. 272 (1a) HGB, the nominal value of the treasury shares of KEUR 771 (prior year:
kEUR 200) was deducted from subscribed capital.

Other provisions

Provisions primarily comprise variable salary components (kEUR 536),

warranty

risks

(KEUR 211), credit notes to be issued and tool cost allowances (KEUR 3,277) as well as outstand-
ing invoices (KEUR 2,012).

Liabilities

The residual terms of liabilities are specified in the statement of changes in liabilities.

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
| Restlaufzeit davon o Restlaufzeit davon
Reftlaufzelt lber1bis5 Restlaufzeit Gesamt Restlaufzeit bis tiber 1 bis 5 Restlaufzeit Gesamt
bis 1Jahr Jahre ber 5 Jahre 1lahr Jahre ber 5 Jahre
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR

1.Verbindlichkeiten gegentiber

Kreditinstituten 1.085,7 3.614,3| 1.071,4] 4.700,0, 1.085,7 4.700,0 1.357,1 5.785,7|
2.Verbindlichkeiten aus

Lieferungen und Leistungen 3.920,1] 3.920,1] 3.334,5] 3.334,5
3. Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber

verbundenen Unternehmen 354, 6] 354,6 440,3 440,3
4. Sonstige Verbindlichkeiten 578,2] 578,2 1.170,0 1.170,0|
- davon aus Steuern 338,4] 338,4 476,7 476,7
- davon im Rahmen der

sozialen Sichereit 29,0 29,0 45,1 45,1

There are the following collaterals for liabilities to banks:

The respective machines financed,
A KEUR 4,000 land charge entered for plant 3.

Trade payables have been collateralised through suppliers’ customary retention of title. As in the
prior year, liabilities to affiliated companies result from trade.
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Other financial commitments as at 31 Mar. 2022:

31.03.2022
davon mit davon mit
einer davon mit einer einer
Gesamt |Restlaufzeit| Restlaufzeit zwischen 1 Restlaufzeit
bis zu und 5 Jahren von mehr als
einem Jahr 5 Jahren
Miet- und Leasingvertrage *) 413 150 262 -
Notes to off-balance-sheet transactions
Operating lease Purpose Lowering of cash outflow on account of

reduction in capital investment volume
Risks Charge of rentals during
the contract term of up to 5 years
Advantages  Modernisation of machinery and
office equipment without appropriating
investment funds

Consignment stock
agreements Purpose Optimum handling of sales transactions
Risks None
Advantages Increase in customer satisfaction

Outsourcing of operational
functions (legal function) Purpose Optimised addressing of imminent
litigation
Risks Timely availability of external
legal advice by lawyers ensured
Advantages Cost saving in comparison with maintenance
of internal legal function

Overall, the financial effects are immaterial.
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Notes to the statement of profit and loss

Umsatzerlose 2021/2022 2020/2021
TEUR TEUR
Aluminiumdruckguss 43.045 36.886
Zinkdruckguss 225 189
Formen 5.352 5.805
Sonstige 741 404
49.363 43.284
Erlosschmélerungen -57 -121
49.306 43.163

Revenue is almost exclusively realised in Germany.

Other revenue mainly relates to income from scrap sales.

Other disclosures

Number of employees

The average headcount during the reporting year was:

2021/2022 2020/2021
Gewerbliche 188 165
Angestellte 50 51
238 216
Auszubildende 8 9
246 225

Management

In the reporting year, management functions were performed by:

e Mr Rinze Dijkstra

¢ Mr Massimo Venuti (Managing Director Endurance Overseas Srl., Italy)

In accordance with Sec. 286 (4) HGB, the Company did not disclose the remuneration of the

managing directors.
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Advisory board

The members of the advisory board are:

e Mr Anurang Jain — Managing Director Endurance Technologies Limited, Aurangabad/India

The total emoluments paid to the advisory board for the financial year 2021/2022 amounted to
kEUR 0.

Audit and consulting fees

The total fees charged by the auditors of the annual financial statements for the reporting year
amount to:

kEUR
Audit services 29
Other assurance services 31
Tax consultancy 25
Total 85

Related party transactions
Apart from the usual trade relationships, there have been no further related party transactions.
Group affiliation

The Company is included in the consolidated financial statements of Endurance Technologies
Limited, Aurangabad/India, which prepares the consolidated financial statements for the smallest
and largest group of consolidated entities. These consolidated financial statements are disclosed
at the place of the parent company.

Subsequent events

There were no major post-balance-sheet-date events which have been taken into account neither
in the statement of profit and loss nor in the balance sheet. Regarding the impact caused by the
war in Ukraine, we refer to the disclosures in the management report.
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Proposed appropriation of profits

General Management proposes (in conformity with the advisory board) to carry forward onto new
account the profit for the year of EUR 1,147,092.13.

Massenbachhausen/Germany, 29 April 2022

— The General Management —
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To Endurance GmbH, Massenbachhausen/Germany

Audit Opinions

We have audited the annual financial statements of Endurance GmbH, Massenbachhausen/Germany, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss for the financial year from
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, and the notes to the financial statements, including the presentation of the recog-
nition and measurement policies. In addition, we have audited the management report of Endurance GmbH,
Massenbachhausen/Germany, for the financial year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

e the accompanying annual financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of Ger-
man commercial law applicable to business corporations and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities
and financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and of its financial performance for the financial
year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 in compliance with German Legally Required Accounting Principles,
and

e the accompanying management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Company’s position.
In all material respects, this management report is consistent with the annual financial statements, complies
with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future develop-
ment.

Pursuant to Section 322 (3) sentence 1 German Commercial Code (HGB), we declare that our audit has not led
to any reservations relating to the legal compliance of the annual financial statements and of the management
report.

Basis for the Audit Opinions

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements and of the management report in accordance with
Section 317 HGB and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits
promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW). Our responsibilities under those requirements and prin-
ciples are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements
and of the Management Report” section of our auditor’s report. We are independent of the Company in accord-
ance with the requirements of German commercial and professional law, and we have fulfilled our other German
professional responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions on the annual financial statements

and on the management report.

Responsibilities of the Executive Directors for the Annual Financial Statements and the Management Report

The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements that comply, in all
material respects, with the requirements of German commercial law applicable to business corporations, and
that the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and fi-
nancial performance of the Company in compliance with German Legally Required Accounting Principles. In ad-
dition, the executive directors are responsible for such internal control as they, in accordance with German Le-
gally Required Accounting Principles, have determined necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the annual financial statements, the executive directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern. In addition, they are responsible for financial reporting based on the going concern
basis of accounting, provided no actual or legal circumstances conflict therewith.

Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the management report that as a
whole provides an appropriate view of the Company’s position and is, in all material respects, consistent with
the annual financial statements, complies with German legal requirements, and appropriately presents the op-
portunities and risks of future development. In addition, the executive directors are responsible for such arrange-
ments and measures (systems) as they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a management
report that is in accordance with the applicable German legal requirements, and to be able to provide sufficient
appropriate evidence for the assertions in the management report.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements and of the Management Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the management report as a whole
provides an appropriate view of the Company’s position and, in all material respects, is consistent with the annual
financial statements and the knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal requirements and
appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development, as well as to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our audit opinions on the annual financial statements and on the management report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Section 317 HGB and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement
Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) will always detect a material misstatement. Mis-
statements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual
financial statements and this management report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements and of the manage-
ment report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

controls.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the annual financial statements and of
arrangements and measures relevant to the audit of the management report in order to design audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an audit opinion on
the effectiveness of these systems of the Company.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by the executive directors and the reasonableness
of estimates made by the executive directors and related disclosures.
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e conclude on the appropriateness of the executive directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclo-
sures in the annual financial statements and in the management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our respective audit opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to be

able to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements present the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and financial performance of the Company in compliance with German Legally Required Accounting
Principles.

e evaluate the consistency of the management report with the annual financial statements, its conformity with
German law, and the view of the Company’s position it provides.

e perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors in the man-
agement report. On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the signifi-
cant assumptions used by the executive directors as a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the
proper derivation of the prospective information from these assumptions. We do not express a separate audit
opinion on the prospective information and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial una-
voidable risk that future events will differ materially from the prospective information.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Mannheim/Germany, 17 May 2022

Deloitte GmbH
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

Signed: Signed:
Steffen Schmidt Michael Harst
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprifer
(German Public Auditor) (German Public Auditor)
Remark: This PDF-file represents a l|egally non-binding
specimen copy.
Legally binding is only the printed and bound
report.
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Head office: VIA DEL BOSCHETTO 2/43 —- LOMBARDORE (Turin)

Tax Code, Turin Chamber of Commerce and Turin Companies Register No. 05754620960
Turin Business Register (REA) no.TO 1101893

Quota capital: Euro 16,105,263.00 subscribed and fully paid

VAT Number: 05754620960

Report on operations
Financial statements at 31/03/2022

Quotaholders,

The explanatory notes provide disclosures on the financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022. In accordance with
art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, this document provides information on the Company's situation and performance. This
report, prepared with amounts shown in Euros, is presented as an accompaniment to the financial statements and provides
information on the Company's earnings, financial position and operations, together, where possible, with historical facts
and an indication of the future outlook.

Information on the Company

Matters concerning the economy in general and the results of operations:

The most significant event that marked the year to March 2022 is undoubtedly the return of war scenarios in Europe, with
the dramatic conflict in Ukraine still ongoing sadly at the time of preparing this report. In response to the humanitarian
crisis that unfortunately involved the population following the conflict, Western countries intervened by imposing
sanctions that have exacerbated the already existing imbalances, particularly in the supply of raw materials and energy
sources. Apart from the recent geopolitical events, which resulted in the military confrontation, the whole of 2021-22
featured by the series of extraordinary events that involved the international community, influencing the market context of
the Automotive sector. The first quarter of the year (April-June 2021) began with confirmation of the economy's recovery,
facilitated by a progressive easing of the restrictions introduced to deal with the Covid-19 pandemic. The reopening of
business contributed to the growth in GDP (+5.3% in the Euro area for 2021) and the Automotive sector also benefited
from this recovery. However, starting from the second quarter (July-September), production slowdowns began due to the
problems that car manufacturers were encountering in the procurement of semiconductors. The lack of chips and other
electronic components then continued over the course of the following quarters, causing a sharp decline in vehicle
registrations compared with both the previous year (2020-21, which was heavily influenced by Covid) and with 2019-20
(the last year that enjoyed normal conditions).

The spread of the Omicron variant, which forced the reintroduction of health measures, and the increase in inflation due to
the rise in the prices of raw materials and energy, also contributed to the slowdown. In fact, gas and electricity prices
began to rise in the autumn, affecting all international markets, Europe in particular, with the result that the flow of gas
from Russia to European countries decreased. In October-December, the material component of energy suffered price
hikes of around 400% compared with the historical average of the previous two years. These increases were then further
aggravated in the following quarter by the outbreak of war. This extraordinary and unpredictable explosion in energy
prices has had a significant impact on the group's results, as explained in greater detail below in the section where we
analyse our results.

In this complex macroeconomic scenario, registrations of new vehicles during the financial year (from April '21 to March
'22) fell overall by -4.9%, considering the European Union and the UK market (the EU on its own -6.3%), with a strong
recovery in the first quarter (+66.7%, due more than anything else to the low volumes of the previous year marked by
generalised lockdowns) and a contraction of -23.6% in the second quarter, -23.4% in the third quarter and -10.8% in the
last quarter. As these were generalised effects, the decreases affected all countries and all car manufacturers with the
exception of Spain (+2.4%) and the UK (+4.2%), which had been heavily penalised the previous year. The VW group, the
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main manufacturer with almost a third of the EU market, recorded a drop in registrations of -8.5%, Stellantis one of -
10.8%, Renault -11.7%, BMW -3.7% and Daimler -12.6%. In the last quarter of the year (January - April 2022), the main
car manufacturers recorded the following trends in terms of registrations: VW -15.6%, Stellantis -23.9%, Renault -8.1%,
BMW -11.46% and Daimler -9.4%.

The data on the production of P&CV vehicles published by IHS MARKIT for the calendar year 2021 show a growth in
world production of cars of +2.7% (compared with -16.9% the previous year, going from 61.5 million to 63.2 million
vehicles) compared with +3.6% of total registrations. The change by geographical macro area shows the following: EU -
5.7%, North America -2.4%, South America +11.2%, Asia +6.7%, Middle East and Africa +15.1%. Within the European
Union, Germany was the leading producer with output of 2.9 million vehicles (albeit down 13.2% compared with the
previous year), followed by Spain with 1.6 million vehicles (-8.9%), the Czech Republic 1.1 million (-3.4%), Slovakia 1.0
million (+2.7%), France 0.9 million (-1.8%), Italy, Romania and Hungary 0.4 million (-7.9%, -4.0% and -3.0%
respectively) compared with the previous year.

In the same period, exports of vehicles from the European Union grew by +3.6% in value, as did imports, which grew in
value by +2.3%.

In 2021, the market share of traditional combustion vehicles stood at 59.6% (having been 75.5% the previous year) of the
EU market (40.0% petrol and 19.6% diesel), while hybrid vehicles (HEVs) reached 19.6% (11.9% the previous year) and
rechargeable electric vehicles (ECVs) accounted for 18.0% (10.5% the previous year) of registrations, with a 9.1% share
going to pure electric vehicles (BEV) and 8.9% to plug-in hybrids (PHEV).

The motorcycle market, which is the other sector that the Group operates in after the acquisition of Adler S.p.A. and
Grimeca S.r.1., posted registrations up by +7.8% in 2021 in the main European markets with respect to the previous year,
with very different trends from country to country: Italy up by +23.6%, France +8.5%, Spain +8% and Germany -9.7%.
Sales exceeded 2019, demonstrating that the sector is in good health, benefiting from more recreational activity near to
home and greater use of motorbikes as an alternative to public transport.

From an industrial point of view, the Group in general had to cope with erratic logistical planning on the part of customers
as they tried to adapt to dysfunctions in the supply chains (especially in the availability of semiconductors). This meant
having to face periods of total or partial suspension of production, with recourse to temporary lay-offs with State
redundancy benefits.

In this extremely complex market situation, the Company and its subsidiaries still managed to achieve positive results.

Key events

As mentioned previously, the Company again suffered the effects of the pandemic during the year.

In any case, the preventive measures introduced, the instructions promptly adopted and the efforts made by the entire
organisation to prevent infection within the Company, made it possible to contain cases of positivity to the virus,
guaranteeing the safety of the workplace.

Among the most significant corporate events we would highlight that:

- on 26 May 2021, by deed of the Notary Agostini in Milan rep. no. 84786/17517, the Company recapitalised
Endurance Adler SpA for an amount of Euro 2.0 million by means of a cash increase in capital of Euro 720,000 and a
share premium of Euro 1,280,000. Following the waiver of the option right by the minority shareholder, the
Company individually perfeormed the capital increase by subscribing all of the 720,000 new shares with a par value
of 1 Euro each. As a result of the capital increase, the share held by the company in Endurance Adler Spa rose to
99.86%;

- on 12 November 2021 the Company acquired 100% of Veicoli Srl for Euro 700,000. Veicoli Srl is an innovative
SME that operates in the provision of fleet and vehicle management services through a software platform, internally
developed. This acquisition aims to broaden the range of products and services offered in the mobility sector as a
provider of innovative solutions. The skills and knowledge of the company's development team will also be made
available to the current business for the development of projects in various areas.

- on 14 December 2021, by deed of Notary Agostini in Milan rep. no. 85544/17959, the Company recapitalised the
newly acquired Veicoli Srl through a cash injection of Euro 1.8 million: Euro 499,529.41 as share capital and Euro
1,300,470.59 as a capital reserve. On that date, new articles of association were adopted which provided, among other
things, for the relocation of the registered office to via Arsenale 33, Turin and a change in the year-end to 31 March

Report on operations 2



ENDURANCE OVERSEAS Sr.l. Financial statements at 31/03/2022

in line with the other companies of the Group. The purpose of the cash injection is to provide the subsidiary with
resources it needs to carry out its expansion and development plans.

- On 28 March 2022, with endorsement authenticated by Notary Agostini in Milan, the company purchased the
remaining 1,200 shares (0.14% of the share capital) of Endurance Adler Spa for Euro 6,000 from the minority
shareholder Amfin Holding Spa.

Management control and coordination activities

Pursuant to para. 5 of art. 2497-bis of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that the Company belongs to the
ENDURANCE Group (India) and is subject to management control and coordination by ENDURANCE
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (India), whose shares have been listed on the National Stock Exchange of India (NSE) and
the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) since October 2016.

These management control and coordination activities did not have any particular impact on the Company's activities and
its results. We can also confirm that no decisions were made that were influenced by the Company that performs
management control and coordination activities and for which there is a need to justify the reasons for them and the
interests that impacted on them.

Financial position

A reclassified balance sheet is provided below to facilitate a better understanding of the Company's financial position.

Balance Sheet - Assets

Item FY 2022 % FY 2021 % Change % Change

WORKING CAPITAL 22,332,476 2272 % 33,640,211 3241% (11,307,735) (33.61) %
Immediate liquidity 13,482,720 13.72% 22,898,440 22.06%  (9,415,720) (41.12) %
Cash and cash equivalents 13,482,720 13.72% 22,898,440 22.06 % (9,415,720) (41.12) %
Deferred liquidity 8,849,756  9.00 % 10,741,771  1035%  (1,892,015) (17.61) %
Current receivables included in working capital 4,300,362 4.38% 4,227,821 4.07 % 72,541 1.72%
Current portion of non-current receivables - - 2,000,000 1.93 % (2,000,000) (100.00) %
Financial assets 4,419,962 4.50 % 4,395,565 4.23% 24,397 0.56 %
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 129,432 0.13% 118,385 0.11% 11,047 9.33%
FIXED ASSETS 75,955,429  77.28% 70,156,595 67.59% 5,798,834 8.27%
Intangible assets 4,120,636 419 % 3,125,091 3.01% 995,545 31.86 %
Tangible fixed assets 13,718,147  13.96 % 14,570,852  14.04 % (852,705) (5.85) %
Financial fixed assets 55,349,281 56.31 % 50,812,426  48.95% 4,536,855 8.93 %
Non-current portion of receivables included in w.capital 2,767,365 2.82% 1,648,226 1.59 % 1,119,139 67.90 %
CAPITAL EMPLOYED 98,287,905 100.00% 103,796,806  100.00% (5,508,901) (5.31)%

Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Quotaholders' Equity

Item FY 2022 % FY 2021 % Change % Change

LIABILITIES 50,790,282 51.68% 57,658,973 55.55% (6,868,691) (11.91) %
Current liabilities 48,674,279  49.52% 50,275,427 48.44% (1,601,148) (3.18) %
Current payables 48,616,980 49.46% 50,195,961 48.36% (1,578,981) (3.15) %
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Item FY 2022 % FY 2021 % Change % Change
Accrued expenses and deferred income 57,299 0.06% 79,466 0.08% (22,167) (27.89) %
Non-current liabilities 2,116,003 2.15% 7,383,546 7.11% (5,267,543) (71.80) %
Non-current payables 639,000 0.65% 5,763,764 5.55% (5,124,764) (88.91) %
Provisions for risks and charges 1,450,336 1.48% 1,603,267 1.54% (152,931) (9.54) %
Employee termination indemnities 26,667 0.03% 16,515 0.02% 10,152 61.47 %
EQUITY 47,497,623  48.32% 46,137,833 44.45% 1,359,790 2.95%
Quota capital 16,105,263  16.39% 16,105,263 15.52% - 0.00 %
Reserves 7,241,979 7.37% 6,772,254 6.52% 469,725 6.94 %
Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 22,786,577  23.18% 13,785,546 13.28% 9,001,031 65.29 %
Net income (loss) for the year 1,363,804 1.39% 9,474,770 9.13% (8,110,966) (85.61) %
FINANCING SOURCES 98,287,905 100.00% 103,796,806  100.00% (5,508,901) (5.31) %
Key indicators of financial position
On the basis of the above reclassification, the following economic indicators have been determined:
RATIO FY 2022 FY 2021 % Change
Fixed asset coverage 64.94% 65.44% (0.76%)
Banks/Working capital 20.52% 32.36% (36.59%)
Debt ratio 1.07 1.25 (14.40%)
Financial debt ratio 0.93 1.13 (17.70%)
Equity/Capital employed 48.32% 44.45% 8.72%
Financial charges/Turnover 1.82% 2.63% (30.80%)
Current ratio 45.88% 66.91% (31.43%)
Fixed assets/Equity (25,690,441.32) (22,370,536.00) 14.84%
Primary coverage ratio 0.65 0.67 (2.99%)
(Equity + non-current liabilities) - Fixed assets (23,574,438.00) (14,986,990.00) 57.30%
Secondary coverage ratio 0.68 0.78 (12.82%)
Net working capital (26,341,803.00) (16,635,216.00) 58.35%
Acid test margin (26,341,803.00) (16,635,216.00) 58.35%
Acid test ratio 45.88% 66.91% (31.43%)
Results
A reclassified income statement is provided below to facilitate a better understanding of the Company's results.
Item FY 2022 % FY 2021 % Change % Change
VALUE OF PRODUCTION 10,302,640 100.00% 8,812,533 100.00% 1,490,107 16.91%
- Consumption of raw materials 40,715 0.40% 29,552 0.34% 11,163 37.78%
- General expenses 1,014,055 9.84% 916,042 10.39% 98,013 10.70%
VALUE ADDED 9,247,870 89.76% 7,866,939 89.27% 1,380,931 17.55%
- Payroll costs 5,121,104 49.71% 5,132,514 58.24% (11,410) (0.22%)
- Provisions - - - - - -
GROSS OPERATING MARGIN 4,126,765 40.06% 2,734,425 31.03% 1,392,340 50.92%
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- Depreciation, amortisation and writedowns 2,108,260 20.46% 1,552,596 17.62% 555,664 35.79%
- Other operating expenses 260,434 2.53% 255,003 2.89% 5,431 2.13%
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL ITEMS 1,758,071 17.06% 926,826 10.52% 831,245 89.69%
+ Financial items 42,099 0.41% 6,674,853 75.74% (6,632,754) (99.37%)
INCOME BEFORE TAX 1,800,170 17.47% 7,601,679 86.26% (5,801,509) (76.32%)
- Taxation 436,366 4.24% (1,873,091)  (21.25%) 2,309,457 (123.30%)
NET INCOME 1,363,804 13.24% 9,474,770  107.51% (8,110,966) (85.61%)
EBITDA 3,866,332 37.53% 2,479,422 28.14% (32,582) (1.30%)

Key performance indicators

On the basis of the above reclassification, the following economic indicators have been determined:

RATIO FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 % Change
R.O.E. 2.87% 20.54% (86.02%)
R.O.1. 5.06% 3.13% 61.60%
R.O.S. 17.06% 10.52% 62.25%
R.O.A. 1.79% 0.89% 100.32%

Information required by art. 2428 of the Civil Code

The detailed information specifically required by art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code is presented below.

Main risks and uncertainties that the Company is exposed to

As required by the first paragraph of Art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, the following is a description of the main risks
and uncertainties that the Company is exposed to, taking into account its nature as a provider of services and investment
holding company that operates in the automotive sector:

RISKS RELATED TO THE GENERAL STATE OF THE ECONOMY: the Company's results are influenced by
trends in the national and international economy. Developments regarding GDP, the cost of raw materials, the
unemployment rate, interest rates and the level of confidence shown by consumers and businesses can condition the sales
performance of end customers and therefore the Company's sales performance as well. There are also further elements of
uncertainty linked to geopolitical tensions, in particular due to the current crisis between Russia and Ukraine, as well as the
possible emergence of new variants of Covid-19. Furthermore, the tightening of international sanctions is affecting
uncertainties about the trend in prices of energy commodities, basic materials (metals in particular) and agricultural
products with repercussions on consumer prices and the growth prospects for the Euro area. These elements of uncertainty
could lead to an alteration of normal market dynamics and, more generally, of business conditions.

RISKS RELATED TO THE SECTOR IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPERATES: the metal alloys and metal parts
machining sector, in which the Company and its subsidiaries operate, is characterised by heated competition that is partly
attributable to the sales trends in the automotive market. As much as the Group has taken action deemed necessary to
improve its level of flexibility, a significant fall in end customers' needs and consequent further pressure on prices caused
by heated competition could adversely impact the company's results and financial position.

RISKS RELATED TO THE ABILITY TO CREATE INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS: the automotive components
sector is characterised by continuous product development needed to satisfy product performance required by car
manufacturers and by environmental legislation (governing emissions). Future investment by the Group will seek to
develop the portfolio of products and diversify the types of production, thereby increasing the ability to meet the needs of
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customers. Failure to develop products and meet needs in terms of price, quality and the functionality imposed by end
customers could adversely impact the prospects for the Group's operations.

FINANCIAL RISKS: The Company is exposed to the following financial risks in the conduct of its operations:
- credit risk in relation to normal commercial transactions with customers of subsidiaries;
- liquidity risks, with particular reference to the availability of financial resources and access to the market for
credit and financial instruments in general;
- market risks, mainly relating to changes in interest rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates.

The Company constantly monitors the financial risks that it is exposed to, in order to evaluate in advance any potential
negative effects and to take appropriate action to mitigate them.

The Company constantly monitors the financial risks that it is exposed to, in order to evaluate in advance any potential
negative effects and to take appropriate action to mitigate them.

Given the main industrial activity of its subsidiaries - the production of components for car makers - the receivables of the
Company are structurally concentrated, as the customers of the Group comprise a limited number of industrial groups.

The Company monitors receivables constantly and regularly adjusts the related allowances for collection risks.
Liquidity risks

The two main factors that determine the Company's liquidity position are, on one hand, the resources generated or
absorbed by operations and by investments and, on the other hand, the timing of the repayment and renewal of debt and of
the liquidity of financial investments.

The Company seeks the most appropriate sources of finance bearing in mind the current and prospective financial position.
Any difficulties encountered in obtaining financing needed to meet the needs of current operations and needs relating to
investments could negatively impact the Company's results and financial position.

Management believes that funds currently available, as well as funds generated from operating activities, will allow the
Company to meet the needs of investing activities, of working capital management and for the repayment of debt as it falls
due.

Market risks

In the conduct of its activities, the Company is exposed to various market risks, particularly the risk of fluctuations in
interest rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates.

Risks relating to changes in interest rates

The Company could have recourse to financial resources made available by the banking sector in the form of debt and use
the funds to finance operations as well as investment and development initiatives. Furthermore, the Company may factor
its trade receivables. Changes in market interest rates impact the cost of various forms of financing and of factoring and
thus affect the level of the Company's financial charges.

To face up to these risks, the Company strives to maintain a suitable relationship between the financing structure and the
structure of capital employed, compatible with opportunities offered and actual market conditions.

Lastly, where considered appropriate, the Company could make use of rate derivatives (interest rate swaps) with the aim of
hedging such risks.

Risks relating to changes in exchange rates

The functional currency used by the Company for the majority of its transactions (Euro) does not currently appear to be
subject to significant risks relating to exchange rate fluctuations.

Key non-financial indicators
Pursuant to Art. 2428, para. 2 of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that, due to the specific activities performed and

for a better understanding of the company's results and financial position, it is not deemed relevant to present non-financial
indicators.
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Information on the environment

In the context of specific policies adopted by Endurance group, the Company strives hard to ensure that production and
operating activities are carried out in compliance with all applicable regulations and international agreements. The
objective is to introduce and maintain a broad culture of constantly improved environmental performance, process and
product safety, while ensuring the safety of workers and installations.

General training on the environment and safety has been provided, as well as specific job-related safety sessions for
employees and managers;

Considering the current and ongoing Covid-19 healthcare crises and in compliance with the decisions made by the
Endurance Group and the authorities, the Company continues to adopt and implement the following measures:

- compliance with the Protocol for tackling and containing the spread of the Covid-19 virus in working environments
and for governing activities and ensuring the protection of employees and third parties, in accordance with the
instructions issued by the authorities.

- supply to personnel of certified surgical masks, disinfectant solutions and materials for the cleaning and sanification
of their working environments, as well as the maintenance of social distancing.

- to the extent feasible, the Company has extended to all job descriptions the ability to make recourse to smart working,
giving preference to this approach over attendance in the workplace.

The Company did not resort to the use of social safety nets, such as the Covid redundancy fund introduced by the Italian
government to cope with production stoppages and the lower level of activity resulting from the pandemic; untaken
holidays were used up instead.

Information on personnel management

The workforce amounted to 13 employees at the end of the year.

During the year, the main training activities involved specialisation courses for Supervisory Managers pursuant to
Legislative Decree 231/01 and training courses for sustainability reporting and refresher courses for the various
professional roles.

Research and development activities
Pursuant to paragraph 3.1 of Art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, it is hereby confirmed that no research and development

activities were performed in the year.

Transactions with subsidiaries, associated companies and parent companies and
companies subject to control by parent companies

The Company has had dealings with other Group companies as referred to in paragraph 3.2 of art. 2428 of the Italian Civil
Code. In particular:

Receivables from affiliates classified as fixed assets

Description FY 2022 FY 2021 Change
to subsidiaries 3,000,000 5,000,000 (2,000,000)
Total 3,000,000 5,000,000 (2,000,000)

The item in question concerns the interest-bearing loans granted during the year to the newly acquired subsidiary
Endurance Adler S.p.a. to allow it to carry out the reorganisation and relaunch process; this also involved the acquisition of
Grimeca S.r.l. in May 2020 from TMB S.p.a., together with brands and know-how in the field of motorcycle braking
systems. The reduction of Euro 2 million corresponds to the amount that was converted into quota capital at the
extraordinary meeting held at the end of May 2021, commented on in the section on significant events.
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Receivables from affiliates recorded under current assets

Description FY 2022 FY 2021 Change
from subsidiaries 831,963 976,386 (144,423)
from parent companies 300,645 - 300,645
from fellow subsidiaries 279,263 349,379 (70,116)
Total 1,411,871 1,325,765 86,106

Receivables due from subsidiaries: € 831,693 in trade receivables deriving from the operational and financial services
provided by the Company as part of the management of the Group.

Receivables from parent companies: € 300,645 for trade receivables due from the parent company Endurance
Technologies Ltd in relation to the sub-licensing of the patents and know-how acquired from Endurance Adler SpA for the
production of clutches and braking systems for motorcycles.

The amount receivable from fellow subsidiaries: € 279,263 relates to the support activities provided to Endurance GmbH,
the German affiliate.

Payables due to and loans from affiliates

Description FY 2022 FY 2021 Change
payables due to subsidiaries 34,127,865 34,426,444 (298,579)
payables due to fellow subsidiaries 4,871,574 7,007,121 (2,135,547)
Total 38,999,439 41,433,565 (2,434,126)

Due to subsidiaries within one year: € 34,127,865, made up of:
e  €3,000,000 for the loan received from Endurance S.p.A.;
e €26,283,013 for the amount due to the cash pooling system, of which
o €15,029,856 is due to Endurance S.p.A.
o €7,514,302 due to Endurance Castings S.p.A.
o €1,819,524 due to Veicoli Srl.
o € 989,446 due to Endurance Engineering Srl
o € 929,885 due to Endurance Adler S.p.A.
e €4,131,405 for amounts due to subsidiaries as part of the tax consolidation
e residual amount of trade payables of € 74,447,

Due to subsidiaries beyond one year: € 639,000 for guarantee deposits received from Endurance S.p.A. for outstanding
rental contracts

Due to fellow subsidiaries for € 4,871,574, being amounts due to Endurance GmbH, namely:
e €3,000,000 for a loan received

e € 1,868,452 due for the cash pooling arrangement

e € 3,122 of trade payables

Treasury shares

Pursuant to arts. 2435-bis and 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that the Company did not hold any treasury
shares at the year end.
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Shares/quotas in the parent company

In accordance with paragraphs 3.3 and 3.4 of Art. 2435-bis and Art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, it is hereby confirmed
that the Company did not hold any shares or quotas in the parent company during the year.

Business outlook

The problems and uncertainties that characterised this last year are not likely to disappear any time soon. The International
Monetary Fund recently issued forecasts that, despite the multiple risk factors existing on the international scene and even
though they are lower than expected in January, see global GDP growth for 2022 of +3.6%, with +3.7% for the USA,
+2.8% for the Euro Area (+2.3% for Italy and +2.1% for Germany) and +3.8% for emerging economies (+4.4% for China
and +8.2% for India).

In early February 2022, before the conflict in Ukraine began, ACEA (the European Automobile Manufacturers'
Association) forecast an increase in registrations in the European Union of 7.9% for the year, mainly thanks to more stable
supplies of semiconductor. No updated forecasts have been made subsequently, but the expectation is for a decidedly less
favourable trend, as demonstrated by the preliminary figures for registrations in the month of April which show a
contraction compared with the previous year of more than 20% for the most of the main European markets.

The result was also affected by temporary factors, such as the production stoppages suffered by manufacturers due to the
absence of components from Ukraine, but it is a consolidated fact that waiting times for the delivery of vehicles to end
customers are much longer than they were for many types of vehicles.

Temporary factors aside, which should hopefully be resolved quickly, there are still unknowns that are more difficult to
resolve quickly because they are the result of geopolitical situations that seem definitively compromised. The sanctions
and the progressive embargo already implemented or planned for supplies from Russia, for energy in particular, but also
for basic materials and foodstuffs, will entail extra costs in procurement destined to weigh on the purchasing power of
consumers and businesses with significant impacts in terms of inflation. This will also lead to an increase in interest rates,
which have already risen significantly in recent months, and this will further reduce the share of those willing to take on
debt to finance their propensity to consume.

Even the possibility that the emergence of new variants of Covid may induce some countries to carry on with periods of
lockdown, could continue to cause disruptions in procurement and supply chains.

At the moment there is a lot of uncertainty because the outcomes and consequences that the various crisis scenarios will
have on the fate of the world economy, and therefore on the repercussions for the Automotive sector, are not yet clear.

We are well aware of the complex context in which we will have to operate, so various activities have been planned to
mitigate some of the adverse effects. It is important that the national and European authorities continue to support the
economy, as shown by the latest measures that they have adopted. They need to address situations of general difficulty,
those of a macroeconomic nature, which afflict Continental Europe in particular.

The financial resources that we have available will be sufficient to cover our commitments, certainly for the next 12
months, allowing the company to take advantage of any opportunities in terms of acquisitions, also in alternative sectors to
our current lines of business. In the absence of further major external shocks, we believe that we can achieve positive
results in the next financial year.

The use of financial instruments that should be taken into account when assessing the
results and financial position

Pursuant to paragraph 3.6-bis of art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that the Company has a policy in place
to hedge the interest-rate risk on medium-term loans by arranging two IRS contracts for some of these loans. The fair value
of these hedging instruments is disclosed in the explanatory notes.

Secondary locations

In accordance with art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, details are provided below of the secondary locations used by the
Company:
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Address Location
VIA REGIONE POZZO 26 CHIVASSO
VIA ARSENALE 33 Turin

Conclusion

Quotaholders,
In light of the considerations set out above and of the disclosures made in the explanatory notes, we invite you:
e to approve the financial statements at 31/03/2022 together with the accompanying notes and report on operations;

e to allocate the result for the year in accordance with the proposal made in the notes.
Lombardore, 16/05/2022
For the Board of Directors

The Managing Director

Massimo Venuti
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General information on the company

Company data
Name: ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL
Registered office:  VIA DEL BOSCHETTO 2/43 — LOMBARDORE (TURIN)
Quota capital: ~ 16,105,263.00

Quota capital fully paid in:
Chamber of Commerce:

VAT Number:

Tax code:

REA Number:

Legal form:

Core business (ATECO):
Company in liquidation:
Company with sole quotaholder:

Company subject to management control and coordination
activities:

Name of the company or entity that exercises management
control and coordination activities:

Belonging to a Group:

Name of the parent company:
Country of the parent company:

Cooperatives register number:

yes
TO

05754620960

05754620960

1101893

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
642000

no

no

yes

ENDURANCE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

yes
ENDURANCE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
INDIA

Financial statements for the year
ended 31/03/2022

Balance sheet

31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Assets
B) Fixed assets
| - Intangible assets - -
3) industrial patent rights and intellectual property rights - 2,326
4) concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights 3,467,500 2,380,000
5) goodwill 653,136 742,765
Total intangible assets 4,120,636 3,125,091

Il - Tangible fixed assets

XBRL financial statements
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ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL

Financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

1) land and buildings 13,501,991 14,295,102

2) plant and machinery 201,222 251,580

3) industrial and commercial equipment 1,117 1,627

4) other assets 13,817 22,543

Total tangible fixed assets 13,718,147 14,570,852

Il - Financial fixed assets - -

1) equity investments in - -

a) subsidiaries 52,349,281 47,812,426

Total equity investments 52,349,281 47,812,426

2) receivables - -

a) from subsidiaries 3,000,000 5,000,000

due within one year - 2,000,000

due beyond one year 3,000,000 3,000,000

Total receivables 3,000,000 5,000,000

Total financial fixed assets 55,349,281 52,812,426

Total fixed assets (B) 73,188,064 70,508,369
C) Current assets

Il - Receivables - -

1) from customers 4,332 2,025

due within one year 4,332 2,025

2) from subsidiaries 831,963 976,386

due within one year 831,963 976,386

4) from parent companies 300,645 -

due within one year 300,645 -

5) fellow subsidiaries 279,263 349,379

due within one year 279,263 349,379

5-bis) tax receivables 2,864,269 2,870,201

due within one year 2,864,269 2,870,201

5-ter) deferred tax assets 2,738,795 1,619,656

5-quater) from others 48,460 58,400

due within one year 19,890 29,830

due beyond one year 28,570 28,570

Total receivables 7,067,727 5,876,047

Il - Current financial assets - -

6) other securities 4,419,962 4,395,565

Total current financial assets 4,419,962 4,395,565

IV - Cash and cash equivalents - -
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ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL

Financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

31/03/2022 31/03/2021
1) bank and postal deposits 13,482,508 22,898,083
3) cash on hand 212 357
Total cash and cash equivalents 13,482,720 22,898,440
Total current assets (C) 24,970,409 33,170,052
D) Accrued income and prepaid expenses 129,432 118,385
Total assets 98,287,905 103,796,806
Liabilities and quotaholders' equity
A) Quotaholders' equity 47,497,623 46,137,833
| - Quota capital 16,105,263 16,105,263
Il - Share premium reserve 304,737 304,737
IV - Legal reserve 1,377,259 903,520
VI - Other distinctly indicated reserves - -
Extraordinary reserve 5,563,997 5,563,997
Total other reserves 5,563,997 5,563,997
VIl - Cash flow hedging reserve (4,014) -
VIII - Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 22,786,577 13,785,546
IX - Net income (loss) for the year 1,363,804 9,474,770
Total quotaholders' equity 47,497,623 46,137,833
B) Provision for risks and charges
2) for current and deferred taxation 1,445,054 1,567,864
3) derivative financial instruments 5,282 35,403
Total provisions for risks and charges 1,450,336 1,603,267
C) Employee termination indemnities 26,667 16,515
D) Payables
4) due to banks 5,124,764 10,734,910
due within one year 5,124,764 5,610,146
due beyond one year - 5,124,764
7) trade payables 117,453 167,982
due within one year 117,453 167,982
9) due to subsidiaries 34,127,865 34,426,444
due within one year 33,488,865 33,787,444
due beyond one year 639,000 639,000
11-bis) due to fellow subsidiaries 4,871,574 7,007,121
due within one year 4,871,574 7,007,121
12) tax payables 738,620 149,052
due within one year 738,620 149,052
13) due to pension and social security institutions 548,700 437,269
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ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL

Financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

31/03/2022 31/03/2021
due within one year 548,700 437,269
14) other payables 3,727,004 3,036,947
due within one year 3,727,004 3,036,947
Total payables 49,255,980 55,959,725
E) Accrued expenses and deferred income 57,299 79,466
Total liabilities and quotaholders' equity 98,287,905 103,796,806
Income statement
31/03/2022 31/03/2021
A) Value of production
1) revenues from sales of goods and services 8,551,917 8,562,652
5) other income and revenues - -
operating grants 180,000 -
other 1,570,723 249,881
Total other income and revenues 1,750,723 249,881
Total value of production 10,302,640 8,812,533
B) Cost of production
6) raw and ancillary materials, consumables and goods for resale 40,715 29,552
7) services 661,091 589,237
8) lease and rental charges 352,964 326,804
9) payroll - -
a) wages and salaries 4,320,152 4,612,472
b) social contributions 525,247 328,238
c) termination indemnities 269,635 180,004
e) other costs 6,070 11,800
Total payroll costs 5,121,104 5,132,514
10) depreciation, amortisation and writedowns - -
a) amortisation of intangible fixed assets 1,254,455 695,105
b) depreciation of tangible fixed assets 853,805 857,491
Total depreciation, amortisation and writedowns 2,108,260 1,552,596
14) other operating expenses 260,433 255,004
Total cost of production 8,544,567 7,885,707
Difference between production value and cost (A - B) 1,758,073 926,826
C) Financial income and charges
15) income from equity investments - -
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ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL

Financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

from subsidiaries - 7,000,000

Total income from equity investments - 7,000,000

16) other financial income - -

d) income other than the above - -

from subsidiaries 18,382 22,520

other 119,744 304,172

Total income other than the above 138,126 326,692

Total other financial income 138,126 326,692

17) interest and other financial charges - -

to subsidiaries 58,560 61,221

to fellow subsidiaries 13,560 16,223

other 83,709 148,036

Total interest and other financial charges 155,829 225,480

17-bis) exchange gains and losses - (942)

Total financial income and charges (15+16-17+-17-bis) (17,703) 7,100,270

D) Adjustments to financial assets and liabilities

18) revaluations - -

c) current financial assets excluding equity investments 24,397 -

d) of financial derivatives 35,403 34,777

Total revaluations 59,800 34,777

19) writedowns - -

c) current financial assets excluding equity investments - 460,195

Total writedowns - 460,195

Total adjustments to financial assets and liabilities (18-19) 59,800 (425,418)

Result before taxes (A-B+-C+-D) 1,800,170 7,601,678
20) Income taxes for the year, current and deferred

current taxation 365,172 102,943

taxation relating to prior years (791) (309,484)

deferred taxation (1,240,681) (1,760,523)

income (charges) from tax consolidation/tax transparency (1,312,666) (93,972)

Total income taxes for the year, current and deferred 436,366 (1,873,092)

21) Net income (loss) for the year 1,363,804 9,474,770
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ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL

Statement of cash flow (indirect method)

Financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

Amount at Amount at
31/03/2022 31/03/2021
A) Cash flows from operating activities (indirect method)
Net income (loss) for the year 1,363,804 9,474,770
Taxation 436,366 (1,873,092)
Interest expense/(interest income) 17,703 (100,271)
(Dividends) (7,000,000)
1) Income (loss) for the year before income taxes, interest, dividends and gains/losses from disposals 1,817,873 501,407
Adjustments for non-cash items that had no contra-entry in net working capital
Provisions 10,324 11,185
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 2,108,260 1,552,596
Adjustments to financial assets and liabilities of financial derivatives that do not involve monetary 460.195
movements ’
Other adjustments up or (down) for non-cash items (4,014)
Total adjustments for non-cash items that had no contra-entry in net working capital 2,114,570 2,023,976
2) Cash flow before changes in net working capital 3,932,443 2,525,383
Change in net working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (88,414) 718,372
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (2,484,655) 9,090,167
Decrease/(Increase) in prepaid expenses and accrued income (11,047) (5,472)
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued expenses and deferred income (22,167) 60,218
Other decreases/(Other Increases) in net working capital 130,401 (4,884,208)
Total changes in net working capital (2,475,882) 4,979,077
3) Cash flow after changes in net working capital 1,456,561 7,504,460
Other adjustments
Interest collected/(paid) (17,703) 100,271
(Income taxes paid) (303,374) (347,572)
Dividends received 7,000,000
(Use of provisions) (153,103) (204,966)
Total other adjustments (474,180) 6,547,733
Cash flow from operating activities (A) 982,381 14,052,193
B) Cash flows from investing activities
Tangible fixed assets
(Investments) (1,100) (11,039)
Intangible assets
(Investments) (2,250,000)
Financial fixed assets
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Amount at Amount at
31/03/2022 31/03/2021

(Investments) (2,536,855)  (8,575,868)

Cash flow from investing activities (B) (4,787,955) (8,586,907)

C) Cash flows from financing activities

Third-party funds

(Repayment of loans) (5,610,146) (5,896,622)
Cash flow from financing activities (C) (5,610,146) (5,896,622)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A £+ B + C) (9,415,720) (431,336)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Bank and postal deposits 22,898,083 23,329,219
Cash on hand 357 557
Total cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 22,898,440 23,329,776

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Bank and postal deposits 13,482,508 22,898,083
Cash on hand 212 357
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13,482,720 22,898,440

Information on the statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows during the year is presented on a comparative basis in accordance with OIC 10.

This statement was prepared using the indirect method, in order to identify the sources and applications of funds deriving
from operating, financing and investing activities.

Explanatory notes, first part

Quotaholders,
These explanatory notes are an integral part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The financial statements submitted for your approval show net income of € 1,363,804, after current and deferred taxes and
Income (charges) from tax consolidation of € 436,366 and depreciation and amortisation that show a cost of € 2,108,260.

Basis of preparation

Preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared in compliance with the Italian Civil Code,
as interpreted and supplemented by the accounting standards issued by the OIC (Italian Accounting Board) and, if these
are unavailable and to the extent not in conflict with Italian Accounting Standards, by those issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as there are no significant uncertainties in this
regard.

However, the pandemic caused by the spread of the Covid-19 virus continued during the year and this continued to
influence the economic trend worldwide, also affecting the activities of the Company and its subsidiaries. They were also
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affected by the slowdown in registrations of new vehicles, and therefore in demand for our goods and services, due to
external events such as the difficulty of manufacturers in finding semiconductors and the increase in the cost of energy and
raw materials.

Further aggravating the general picture were the serious repercussions that the conflict in Ukraine is causing at a
macroeconomic level, starting in the latter part of the financial year, due to the continuing rise in energy and raw material
prices. These are all indirect effects as the Company and the Group do not have direct relationships with customers and
suppliers in the territories affected by the conflict, nor do they have any production facilities there.

To help businesses cope with the consequences of expensive energy, some temporary concessions have been introduced to
mitigate the increase in costs through the recognition of tax credits of variable amounts depending on whether or not they
belong to the categories of "energy-intensive" or "gas-intensive" companies.

Despite the continuation of generalised uncertainty, the current liquidity of the Company together with that of the Group
means that, at present, there are no threats to the ability of the business to continue operations over the next 12 months.

The financial statements comprise the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of cash flows (prepared in
conformity with the respective requirements of arts. 2424 and 2424 bis of the Italian Civil Code (c.c.), arts. 2425 and 2425
bis c.c. and art. 2425 ter c.c.) and these explanatory notes.

The balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of cash flows and the accounting disclosures contained in these
explanatory notes agree with the books of account, from which they have been directly prepared. The items preceded by
Arabic numerals in the balance sheet and income statement have not been grouped together, which is optional under art.
2423 ter of the Italian civil code.

The measurement criteria adopted for the various items comply with those specified in art. 2426 of the Italian civil code
and the relevant accounting standards. These criteria are consistent with those applied for the preparation of the financial
statements of the prior year, having regard for the changes in the relevant regulatory framework described below.

The financial statement items are stated in accordance with the prudence concept and on a going concern basis. Pursuant to
art. 2423-bis, para. 1, point 1-bis c.c., items are recognised and presented having regard for the substance of the operations
or contracts concerned.

Pursuant to art. 2424 of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that no balance sheet items have been allocated to more
than one balance sheet line. -

In the preparation of the financial statements, income and expenses are recorded on an accruals basis, regardless of the
timing of collection and expenditure. Contingencies and losses relating to the year are recognised, even if they become
known after the reporting date.

The purpose of the explanatory notes is to describe, analyse and, in some cases, supplement the data reported on the face
of the financial statements. They contain the information required by arts. 2427 and 2427 bis of the Italian civil code, other
provisions of the civil code and other legislation. In addition, they provide all the complementary information deemed
necessary in order to present the most transparent and complete view possible, even if such information is not required by
specific legislation.

Amounts are stated in whole euro, unless specified otherwise.

The financial statements comply with the requirements of article 2423 et seq. of the Italian Civil Code and with the Italian
accounting standards issued by the OIC (Italian Accounting Board); they have thus been prepared clearly and give a true
and fair view of the company's financial position and results of operations.

Basis of preparation

Financial statement items are stated in accordance with the prudence and relevance concept and on a going concern basis.

The information contained in this document is presented in the order in which the related components are indicated in the
balance sheet and income statement.

With reference to the matter indicated in the introduction to the explanatory notes, we can confirm that, pursuant to
paragraph 3 of art. 2423 of the Italian Civil Code, where the information required by legislative provisions is not sufficient
to give a true and fair view of the company's situation, supplementary information is provided for this purpose.
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Exceptional situations pursuant to paragraph 5 of art. 2423 of the Italian Civil Code

There are no exceptional situations that might have made it necessary to seek exemptions under paragraphs 4 and 5 of art.
2423 of the Italian Civil Code.

Changes in accounting policies

There are no exceptional situations that might have made it necessary to seek exemptions under paragraph 2 of art. 2423-
bis of the Italian Civil Code.

Comparability and compliance issues

Pursuant to Art. 2423 ter of the Civil Code, it is hereby confirmed that all the financial statement items are comparable
with the prior year; no restatement of prior year items has been necessary.

Accounting policies

The financial statement items are stated in accordance with the prudence concept and on a going concern basis. Pursuant to
art. 2423-bis, para. 1, point 1-bis of the Italian Civil Code, items are recognised and presented having regard for the
substance of the operations or contracts concerned.

In the preparation of the financial statements, income and expenses are recorded on an accruals basis, regardless of the
timing of collection and expenditure. Contingencies and losses relating to the year are recognised, even if they become
known after the reporting date.

Preparation of the financial statements

The balance sheet, income statement and the accounting disclosures contained in these explanatory notes agree to the
books of account, from which they have been directly prepared.

The items preceded by Arabic numerals in the balance sheet and income statement have not been grouped together, which
is optional under art. 2423 ter of the Italian Civil Code.

The measurement criteria adopted for the various items comply with those specified in art. 2426 of the Italian Civil Code
and the relevant accounting standards. These criteria are consistent with those applied for the preparation of the financial
statements of the prior year, having regard for the changes in the relevant regulatory framework described below.

Pursuant to Art. 2424 of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that no balance sheet items have been allocated to more
than one balance sheet line.

Accounting policies

The accounting policies applied for the preparation of these financial statements, described below, take account of the
amendments, additions and new provisions included in the Italian civil code by Decree 139/2015, which transposed
Directive 34/2013/EU into Italian law. In particular, the domestic accounting standards were reformulated by the OIC in
the latest version issued on 22 December 2016, inclusive of the amendments published on 29 December 2017.

The accounting policies applied for the measurement of financial statement items and for their adjustment comply with the
provisions of the Italian Civil Code and with the indications included in the Italian accounting standards reformulated by
the Italian Accounting Board. Pursuant to art. 2427 paragraph 1 no. 1 of the Italian Civil Code, we explain the more
significant accounting policies applied in compliance with the provisions of art. 2426 of the Italian Civil Code, particularly
for those items for which the legislator permits the use of options for measurement and adjustments or for which no
specific accounting policy exists.

Intangible assets

When the established criteria are met, these are recorded at purchase or production cost, inclusive of direct costs and
related charges, and amortised systematically each year on a straight-line basis. Intangible assets are recognised with the
consent of the Board of Statutory Auditors where prescribed by law.

Their book value is stated net of accumulated amortisation and writedowns.
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Amortisation is applied as indicated below, in order to allocate the cost incurred over the useful lives of the relevant assets:

Intangible assets Amortisation period

Start-up and expansion costs 5 years on a straight line basis
Industrial patent rights and intellectual property rights 3 years on a straight-line basis
Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights 5 years on a straight line basis
Goodwill 15 years on a straight line basis
Other intangible assets 5 years on a straight line basis

Start-up and expansion costs are recorded as a balance sheet asset, with the consent of the Board of Statutory Auditors, as
they are prudently considered to be of future benefit; these costs are amortised over a period that does not exceed five
years.

Adpvertising and research costs are expensed in full in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill, comprising the extra value recognised on the acquisition of businesses and in relation to other corporate
transactions, is amortised over its useful life. Useful life is estimated at the time of initial recognition and is not changed in
subsequent years. If this estimate cannot be made, goodwill is amortised over 10 years.

In order to determine the useful life of goodwill, the Company applies the information available in order to estimate the
likely duration of its economic benefits. Should the useful life of goodwill be found to exceed 10 years, specific analyses
are carried out to support the value determined with reference to the longer useful life, as required by OIC 24.70.

Leasehold improvements are capitalised and classified as "other intangible assets" if they cannot be separated from the
assets concerned (in which case they are recognised in the relevant category of "tangible fixed assets"). They are amortised
systematically over the period they are expected to benefit (prudently set at 5 years) or, if shorter, over the residual
duration of the lease after taking account of any renewal period available at the discretion of the Company.

If permanent impairment is identified regardless of the amortisation already recorded, the asset is written down
accordingly; should the reasons for write-downs cease to apply in subsequent years, the original amounts are reinstated
without exceeding the carrying amounts that the assets would have had in the absence of the earlier write-downs. This
reinstatement does not apply to goodwill or the deferred charges referred to in point 5 of art. 2426 of the Italian civil code.

Pursuant and consequent to art. 10 of Law 72 of 19 March 1983 and subsequent laws on the revaluation of assets, we
confirm that the intangible assets reported in the financial statements have never been revalued.

Tangible fixed assets

These are recorded at purchase or internal construction cost and stated net of the depreciation charged in the current and
prior years. Costs comprise related charges and the direct and indirect expenses that can reasonably be allocated to assets
during the construction period and until they become available for use. They also include any borrowing costs incurred to
finance the construction work (whether internal or carried out by third parties) until the asset become available for use,
without however exceeding its recoverable value. Tangible fixed assets are only revalued if this is required or allowed by
special laws.

Pursuant to art. 10 of Law 72 of 19 March 1983 and subsequent laws on revaluations of assets, it is hereby confirmed that
the tangible assets recorded in the books have never been revalued.

Assets purchased in foreign currencies are recorded at cost using the exchange rate in force on the transaction date, or
using the lower rate applying on the reporting date if the reduction is deemed to be permanent.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated systematically each year on a straight-line basis using the following rates:

Tangible fixed asset items Depreciation rate

Buildings 3%

Buildings — allocation of merger deficit (*) 6.67%

Plant and machinery 10%

Industrial and commercial equipment 15%

Light constructions 10%

Alarm systems 30%

Telephone 20%
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Motor cars 25%

(*) depreciation based on the estimated residual useful lives, 15 years, of the assets that were allocated additional value following the merger (the effective date
of which was 1 January 2015).

When fixed assets enter into service during the year, their depreciation commences on a time-apportioned basis from the
month after the one in which they become available and ready for use in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation is also charged on fixed assets that are temporarily out of use. Land is not depreciated, as its useful life is not
finite.

If applicable, buildings held as a financial investment are not depreciated if their residual value is greater than or equal to
their net carrying amount.

If permanent impairment is identified regardless of the depreciation already recorded, the asset is written down
accordingly; should the reasons for write-downs cease to apply in subsequent years, the original amounts are reinstated
without exceeding the carrying amounts that the assets would have had in the absence of the earlier write-downs.

Routine maintenance and repair costs are charged in full to the income statement. Improvement costs are allocated to the
fixed assets concerned and depreciated over their residual useful lives.

Costs incurred to expand, modernise or improve the structural elements of a tangible fixed asset are capitalised if they
significantly and measurably increase its productive capacity, safety or useful life. If the costs concerned do not have the
above effect, they are treated as routine maintenance and charged to the income statement.

Start-up grants are recognised when it becomes reasonably certain that the conditions for their collection will be satisfied
and the grants will be paid. They are deducted from cost indirectly, as they are credited to income statement caption A5
“other income and revenues” and then deferred for recognition on an accruals basis via classification as “deferred income”.

Impairment (intangible assets and tangible fixed assets)

At each reporting date, the Company determines if there is any evidence that the value of its tangible and intangible fixed
assets might be impaired. If such evidence is found, the Company estimates the recoverable value of each asset concerned
and records an impairment writedown if it is lower than the corresponding net carrying amount.

Recoverable value is not determined if there is no evidence of possible impairment.

The recoverable value of tangible and intangible fixed assets is deemed to be their value in use (calculated by discounting
their future cash flows) or, if greater, their fair value (being the amount obtainable at the reporting date, based on the best
available information, from their sale in an arm's-length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties, net of the
related selling costs).

With regard to the above, the Company has looked for evidence that the value of its tangible and intangible fixed assets
might be impaired, but did not find any and, accordingly, has not determined the recoverable value of the above assets.

Equity investments, securities and financial receivables (classified as financial fixed assets)
The equity investments and debt securities classified as fixed assets will be held by the Company over the long term.

Equity investments are measured at cost, as adjusted for any impairment. The cost recorded in the financial statements is
determined with reference to purchase or subscription price, inclusive of related expenses. If lasting impairment is
identified, the carrying amount of equity investments is reduced to their recoverable value, which is determined with
reference to the future benefits that are expected to accrue to the Company. Should the Company be obliged or intend to
cover the (non-permanent) losses incurred by an equity investment, a suitable provision is recorded to cover the liability to
which the Company is exposed. If in future years the reasons for the writedown cease to apply, the equity investment is
written back to its original carrying amount.

Intercompany loans

Intercompany loans with a duration of more than 12 months are usually governed by contracts arranged on market terms
and conditions; interest-free intercompany loans and those arranged at significantly below market rates are recognised
initially at the value of the related future cash flows, as discounted using the market rate (being the average funding rate of
the Company or the Group). The difference with respect to the liquidity collected by the parent company is credited to
quotaholder's equity.
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Receivables

Receivables are stated at amortised cost, having regard for the time factor and their estimated realisable value. The
amortised cost method is not applied when its effects are insignificant, being when the transaction costs, the commissions
paid between the parties and all other difference between initial value and maturity value are immaterial or when the
receivables are recoverable in the short term (within 12 months).

Trade receivables due beyond 12 months at the time of initial recognition, without the payment of interest or with interest
that differs significantly from market rates, and the related revenues are recognised initially at the value of their future cash
flows discounted using the market rate (being that applied by two independent parties when negotiating a loan transaction
with similar terms and conditions). The difference between the amount of the receivable recognised initially and its
maturity value is recognised as financial income in the income statement over the duration of the receivable, using the
effective interest method.

The amount of receivables, as determined above, is adjusted when necessary by a specific allowance for doubtful accounts,
which is deducted directly from their gross amount in order to report them at their estimated realisable value. The
provision (which takes account of collection losses, returns and invoicing adjustments, discounts and allowances, interest
not yet earned and other reasons for reduced recoverability) is charged to the income statement.

Receivables assigned to factors are only derecognised if they are sold without recourse and essentially all the related risks
are transferred (the difference between the consideration received on the assignment and the carrying amount of the
receivable is recognised in income statement caption C17). If the assignment does not involve derecognition (for example,
assignment with recourse), since not all the related risks are transferred, the receivable continues to be reported in the
balance sheet and is measured in the manner described above. If advance consideration is received from the assignee, the
amount is recognised as a financial payable.

Receivables taking the form of bank receipts that have not been assigned remain classified as receivables until final
collection of the amounts concerned.

Receivables deriving from centralised treasury management activities are classified separately within current assets, if
recoverable in the short term. If this is not the case, they are classified as financial fixed assets.

Equity investments and securities not held as fixed assets

This caption comprises the equity investments and debt securities that will not be held over the long term by the Company.
They are recorded at specific cost or, if lower, at their market value that, for listed investments, is determined with
reference to their market price on the reporting date, being 31 March 2022.

These equity investments are written down to their realisable value case by case, rather than on an overall basis. If the
reasons for any adjustments cease to apply, in whole or in part, the adjustments are reversed with exceeding original cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the reporting date are measured at their nominal value. Amounts denominated in foreign
currencies are measured using the closing exchange rates.

Accruals and deferrals

Accruals and deferrals comprise costs and revenues relating to the year that will be formally recorded in future years, and
costs and revenues recorded by the reporting date that relate to future years. The related amounts are determined on a time-
apportioned basis.

Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risks and charges cover known or likely losses or liabilities, the timing or extent of which cannot be
determined at the reporting date. These provisions, including those for deferred tax liabilities, which are classified in this
caption, reflect the best possible estimates based on the information available. Risk that only might give rise to a liability
are described in the notes on the provisions, without actually recording a provision. As required by OIC 31, new provisions
for risks and charges are, where possible, classified in the relevant income statement classes (B, C or D). Whenever it is
not possible to correlate a new provision with a caption in one of the above classes, it is classified in income statement
caption B12 or B13.
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Employee termination indemnities

Employee termination indemnities represent the total amount that would have been payable to all employees had they
terminated their employment on the reporting date. The charge for the year, comprising the new provision and the
revaluation of the accumulated provision (based on the change in the relevant ISTAT index), is determined in accordance
with current regulations, having regard for the specific employment contracts and the professional categories concerned.
Employee termination indemnities are classified in liability caption C, while the provision for the year is classified in
income statement caption B9.

The changes made to the regulations governing termination indemnities by Law 296 dated 27 December 2006 (2007
Finance Law) and subsequent decrees and enabling regulations, amended the accounting for the indemnities earned by 31
December 2006 and those earned from 1 January 2007. In particular, following creation of the INPS Treasury Fund to
manage the termination indemnities of private sector employees, employers with more than 50 employees are obliged to
pay the new provisions relating to them into the Treasury Fund, unless the persons concerned have specifically opted for
their indemnities to be paid to a supplementary pension fund. The employee termination indemnities reported in the
balance sheet are therefore stated net of the amounts paid to the above INPS Treasury Fund.

Payables

Payables are stated at amortised cost, as defined in art. 2426, para. 2 c.c., having regard for the time factor envisaged in art.
2426, para. 1, point 8 of the Italian civil code. Payables are however stated at their nominal amount if application of the
amortisation cost and/or discounting methods would not be significant for the purpose of providing a true and fair view of
the financial position and results of operations. This situation arises in the case of payables due within twelve months or,
with regard to the amortised cost method, if the transaction costs, commissions and all other differences between the initial
value and the maturity value are insignificant or, again, with regard to the discounting method, if the interest rate inherent
in the contractual conditions is not significantly different to the market rate of interest.

The amounts due to employees for untaken holidays and deferred payroll, including the related social security
contributions, are accrued with reference to the amount that would have been payable had their employment ceased on the
reporting date.

Finance leases

Finance leases are recognised using the payments method, by charging the instalments paid to the income statement on an
accruals basis. A specific section of these explanatory notes contains the supplementary information required by the law on
the effect of recognising these contracts using finance lease methodology.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments consist of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

They are only classified as hedging instruments when, at the time of arrangement, there is a strict, documented correlation
between the characteristics of the hedged item and those of the hedging instrument, and that hedging relationship is both
formally documented and, based on periodic checks, highly effective.

When derivatives hedge the risk of changes in the fair value of the hedged instruments (fair value hedges), they are
measured at fair value through profit or loss; for consistency, the carrying amounts of the hedged items are adjusted to
reflect the changes in fair value associated with the hedged risk.

When derivatives hedge the risk of changes in future cash flows of the hedged instruments ("cash flow hedges"), the
effective portion of the profits or losses on the derivative financial instrument is put into suspense in shareholders' equity
(under the “Cash flow hedging reserve”, net of tax). The ineffective portion of the profits and losses associated with a
hedge is recognised in the income statement. On completion of the transaction, the accumulated profits and losses,
previously deferred to quotaholder's equity, are released to the income statement (to adjust the income statement items
affected by the hedged cash flows).

When hedge accounting is used, the changes in the related fair value of the hedging derivatives are recognised:

* in income statement captions D18 or D19, in the case of a fair value hedge of a reported asset or liability, together
with the changes in the fair value of the hedged items (if the change in the fair value of the hedged item is greater in
absolute terms than the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument, the difference is recognised in the income
statement caption affected by the hedged item);
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= in a specific equity reserve (caption AVII “Cash flow hedging reserve”) in a manner that offset the effects of the
hedged flows (the ineffective portion, like the change in the time value of options and forwards, is classified in
captions D18 and D19).

The changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classified as trading derivatives, either because they do not
qualify for treatment as hedging derivatives or because they were not designated as hedges, even though they were
arranged operationally to hedge the risk of changes in interest rates and/or exchange rates and/or commodity prices, are
recorded in the balance sheet and recognised in income statement captions D18 or D19.

Any derivatives embedded in other financial instruments must also be measured at fair value. In particular, embedded
instruments are only separated from the primary contract and recognised as derivative financial instruments if, and only if:

a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely correlated with the economic
characteristics and risks of the primary contract. Close correlation exists if hybrid contracts are arranged in
accordance with market practice;

b) all the elements included in the definition of a derivative financial instrument specified in OIC 32.11 are satisfied.

Revenues

Revenues from the sale of goods are recognised when ownership passes in substance, rather than in formal terms, being
when the related risks and benefits are transferred (which in practice coincides with the time of delivery or shipment of the
goods). Revenues from services are recognised upon completion and/or when earned.

Revenues from the sale of products, goods and services in the ordinary course of business are stated net of returns,
discounts, allowances and rebates, as well as the direct taxes charged on the sale of products and services. Transactions
with related parties take place on normal market terms and conditions.

Costs

Costs stated net of returns, discounts, allowances and rebates are recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the
matching principle, regardless of the date of collection or payment. Compliance with the matching principle requires an
estimate to be made of the invoices to be received.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the year in which they are declared by the shareholders' meeting. Dividends are recognised as
financial income, regardless of the nature of the reserves that are distributed.

Financial income and charges
Financial income and charges are recognised on an accruals basis. Costs relating to the disposal of receivables for
whatever reason are charged to the income statement on an accruals basis.

Taxation

Income taxes are recognised with reference to an estimate of taxable income in compliance with current regulations,
having regard for any applicable exemptions and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated on the temporary differences between the reported carrying amount of
assets and liabilities and their corresponding values for tax purposes. Their measurement takes account of the tax rates
expected to be in force in the year in which such differences contribute to the formation of taxable income, being the rates
in force or already communicated at the reporting date (24% for IRES and 3.9% for IRAP). They are classified
respectively among the current assets as “deferred tax assets” and among the provisions for risks and charges as “deferred
tax liabilities™.

In accordance with the concept of prudence, deferred tax assets are recognised on all deductible temporary differences if it
is reasonably certain that taxable income in the years in which they reverse will not be less than the amount of the
differences to be absorbed.

By contrast, deferred tax liabilities are recognised on all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised in relation to reserves subject to the deferral of taxation if they are unlikely to be
distributed to the shareholder.
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Also for the year in question, the Company maintained the national tax consolidation regime pursuant to art. 117/129 of
the Consolidated Income Tax Act (TUIR), involving Endurance SpA, Endurance Engineering Srl and, from 2021-22,
Endurance Castings SpA and Endurance Adler SpA.

The Company is the parent of this tax group and calculates just one taxable income for all member companies, with the
benefit that taxable income can be offset against tax losses in a single tax declaration.

All members of the tax group transfer their taxable income (or loss) to the group parent, which records an amount
receivable from them for the IRES to be paid (the consolidated companies record an amount payable to the tax group
parent). Conversely, the group parent records an amount payable to the companies that transfer tax losses, representing the
IRES actually offset at group level (the consolidated companies record an amount receivable from the tax group parent).

Translation of foreign currency items

Non-monetary assets and liabilities originally denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the balance sheet using
the exchange rates applying at the time of their acquisition, being their initial recognition cost.

Monetary assets and liabilities originally denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the balance sheet using the
spot exchange rates applying on the reporting date; the related exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement and any net unrealised gains are allocated to a non-distributable reserve until they have been realised.

Measurement of components denominated in foreign currency

As at the balance sheet date, the company does not have any assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currency.

Other information

Repurchase agreements

Pursuant to art. 2427 point 6-ter of the Italian Civil Code, the Company confirms that no repurchase agreements were
arranged during the year.

Explanatory notes, assets

The assets recorded in the balance sheet are measured in accordance with art. 2426 c.c. and Italian accounting standards.

The specific measurement criteria applied are indicated in the individual notes on each item.

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
After having charged amortisation for the year of € 1,254,455, the balance of intangible assets is € 4,120,636.

Movements in intangible assets

The table shows the movements in fixed assets during the year.

Start-up and Industrial Concessions, Other Total
. patent rights licences, . . : . ’
expansion ) Goodwill intangible intangible
and intellectual trademarks and
costs . T h assets assets
property rights  similar rights
Balance at the beginning of the year
Cost 52,430 33,452 3,000,000 1,345,787 75,684 4,507,353
Amortisation (Accumulated amortisation) 52,430 31,126 620,000 603,022 75,684 1,382,262
Carrying amount - 2,326 2,380,000 742,765 - 3,125,091
XBRL financial statements 25



ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL Financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

S paenironts | UG0S Goog e inabl
costs LGty rights  similar rights assels  assels

Changes during the year

Additions - - 2,250,000 - - 2,250,000
Amortisation for the year - 2,326 1,162,500 89,629 - 1,254,455
Total changes 2 (2,326) 1,087,500 (89,629) - 995,545
Balance at the end of the year

Cost 52,430 33,452 5,250,000 1,345,787 75,684 6,757,353
Amortisation (Accumulated amortisation) 52,430 33,452 1,782,500 692,651 75,684 2,636,717
Carrying amount - - 3,467,500 653,136 - 4,120,636

Industrial patent rights and intellectual property rights (fully amortised at 31 March 2022) relate to the licences for the
management software used by the Company, which are amortised over 3 years.

Goodwill amounting to € 653,136 at 31 March 2022 (€ 742,765 at 31 March 2021) represents part of the difference that
arose on the absorption of subsidiaries Haminoea S.r.1. and Lomec S.r.1. by the parent company Endurance Overseas S.r.1.
(the "Merger") in 2014-2015, and represents the additional value associated with certain properties held under finance
lease arrangements at the time when the merger deficit was being allocated.

In particular, this merger was carried out in order to simplify the chain of control over the subsidiaries and resulted in a
combined merger deficit of € 6.3 million, being the difference between the book value of the quotas of the two merged
subsidiaries and their net equity. This deficit was allocated as follows:

- € 5.0 million to increase the carrying amount of certain properties (based on expert appraisals of their market value
determined by independent experts);

- € 2.5 million to increase the carrying amount of the investment in Endurance FOA S.P.A. (based on the forecast
profitability of the acquired company);

- the recognition of € 1.3 million as goodwill, reflecting the additional value of certain properties held under finance
lease arrangements (and therefore not reported in the balance sheet).

At the same time, on the liabilities side of the balance sheet, deferred tax liabilities of € 2.6 million were recognised on the
additional value allocated to the properties concerned. Given that the additional values identified as a result of the merger
are irrelevant for tax purposes, this being a tax neutral transaction under the current tax legislation, the gradual release to
the income statement of these tax provisions will neutralise the additional tax charges made in the current and subsequent
years due to the disallowance of the additional costs (depreciation) deriving from the increased carrying amount of the
assets following the merger.

Goodwill is amortised over 15 years, being the estimated useful life of the assets acquired by the Company via the above-
mentioned business combination.

Pursuant to art. 10 of Law 72 of 19 March 1983 and subsequent laws on the revaluation of assets, we confirm that the
intangible assets recorded in the books have never been revalued.

It should be noted that, on the basis of the most recent prospective scenarios and also taking into account the current
pandemic context, it was not necessary to make write-downs pursuant to art. 2426 paragraph 1. 3 of the Italian Civil Code,
as required by OIC 9. The recoverability of the goodwill recognised in the balance sheet was confirmed by the five-year,
economic-financial forecasts prepared by management, which show that the activities of the Group are expected to be
profitable over that period. Applying the DCF method to the cash flows for each year, the enterprise value of the Company
was determined as part of an impairment test that confirmed that the individual fair value of all assets, including goodwill
in particular, exceeds their corresponding net carrying amounts.

The concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights recognised in the financial statements at 31 March 2022 for €
3,467,500 (€ 2,380,000 at 31 March 2021), refer to the licence for the exclusive exploitation of patents, know-how,
trademarks and other intellectual property rights for the design, manufacture and marketing of innovative clutches, brake
discs and braking systems for the motorcycle market. This licence was acquired in two stages: the first part of know-how
was purchased from Adler Spa before this company joined the Endurance Group, whereas the second part (shown as

XBRL financial statements 26



ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL Financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

additions in the table above) was acquired in June 2021 and concerns patents and intellectual property rights, technology,
know-how and the “G Grimeca” brand for the production and marketing of brake discs and braking systems.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets recorded in the financial statements at 31/03/2022 amounted to € 13,718,147, net of accumulated
depreciation of € 7,817,147 and consist of:

- Land and buildings: € 13,501,991 (including the additional value allocated to the property of the Company at the time
of the Merger);

- Plant and machinery: € 201,222;
- Industrial and commercial equipment: € 1,117,

- Other assets: € 13,817.

Movements in tangible fixed assets

The changes occurred during the 2021-2022 financial year are analysed below:

Industrial and Total

Land and Plant and Other tangible

buildings  machinery Ce%rﬂr;ﬁ:gﬁ fixed assets tangaisbslgtgxed
Balance at the beginning of the year
Cost 20,547,507 789,939 10,226 186,522 21,534,194
Depreciation (Accumulated depreciation) 6,252,405 538,359 8,599 163,979 6,963,342
Carrying amount 14,295,102 251,580 1,627 22,543 14,570,852
Changes during the year
Additions - - - 1,100 1,100
Depreciation for the year 793,111 50,358 510 9,826 853,805
Total changes (793,111) (50,358) (510) (8,726) (852,705)
Balance at the end of the year
Cost 20,547,507 789,939 10,226 187,622 21,535,294
Depreciation (Accumulated depreciation) 7,045,516 588,717 9,109 173,805 7,817,147
Carrying amount 13,501,991 201,222 1,117 13,817 13,718,147

During the year, there were no significant investments in fixed assets used in the business.

With specific reference to the evidence for losses attributable to the healthcare emergency, the directors responded to a
Group-level requirement by analysing carefully the cash flows forecast on the basis of current information, concluding that
the value of tangible fixed assets at 31 March 2022 will be recoverable from future cash flows.

Finance leases

As at the balance sheet date the company is not party to any finance lease contracts.

Financial fixed assets

The item in question relates to the amount of the investments in subsidiaries held at the end of the financial year. The
equity investments recorded in the financial statements are stated at cost, equal to the expense incurred for the purchase,
regardless of the manner of payment, comprising any ancillary charges (commissions and bank charges, stamp duty, bank
intermediary fees, etc.).

The following table provides details of equity investments in subsidiary companies as well as the additional disclosures
required by Art 2427 of the Civil Code.
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Result

Suyer  Shamuola 202U Nl S meresthed ST
year eld (%)  (amount)
ENDURANCE SPA Chivasso (TO) 5,000,000 3,748,118 81,442,853 100.00% 81,442,853 34,054,358
ENDURANCE ENGINEERING SRL  Turin 100,000 668,537 5,986,508 100.00% 5,986,508 2,000,000
ENDURANCE CASTINGS SPA Bione (BS) 900,000 1,409,309 12,186,467 100.00% 12,186,467 8,182,200
ENDURANCE ADLER SPA Rovereto (TN) 840,000 167,869 2,501,287 100.00% 2,501,287 5,581,868
VEICOLI SRL Turin 500,000 16,451 1,800,626 100.00% 1,800,626 2,530,855
Total 52,349,281

As explained in the report on operations, on 12 November 2021 the Company acquired 100% of Veicoli Srl, a company
that operates in the development and implementation of applications for the management of corporate fleets (both
passenger and commercial), with the possibility of the geolocation of vehicles. The investment of Euro 700,000 was
followed by a subsequent recapitalisation of the company approved by the general meeting for a total of Euro 1.8 million,
of which Euro 500 thousand as share capital and the rest as a reserve for future increases in share capital. With the entry of
Veicoli Srl into the Endurance Group, the new subsidiary has aligned its year-end date to that of the other companies in the
Group.

On 26 May 2021, by deed of the Notary Agostini in Milan rep. no. 84786/17517, the Company recapitalised Endurance
Adler SpA by means of a cash increase in capital of Euro 720,000 and a share premium of Euro 1,280,000.

Again in relation to Endurance Adler SpA, the Company purchased the residual shares owned by Amfin Holding SpA,
thus becoming the owner of 100% of the share capital of the subsidiary.

With the sole exception of the companies that have recently joined the Group (Endurance Adler Spa and Veicoli Srl), the
book value of the investments in the subsidiaries is well below the corresponding share of equity held by virtue of the
positive results achieved by them. The reorganisation and development plan currently being implemented at the recently
acquired companies (Endurance Adler SpA and Veicoli Srl) should make it possible to achieve positive results and hence
recover the differential between the companies's carrying value and their net equity.

The absence of any evidence of impairment is further confirmed by the five-year, economic-financial forecasts prepared by
the management of each company, which indicate continued profitability over that period. The theoretical present value of
the subsidiaries was calculated using the DCF method (impairment test). The outcome confirmed that the present value of
each subsidiary is greater than the related carrying amount.

Changes in and maturity of non-current receivables

The following table shows the movements in financial fixed assets during the year.

I_Balgnce at the Changes during the Balance at the end of Beyond one year
beginning of the year year the year
Receivables due from subsidiaries 5,000,000 (2,000,000) 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total 5,000,000 (2,000,000) 3,000,000 3,000,000

The item in question relates to interest-bearing loans granted during the previous year to the subsidiary Endurance Adler
Spa to allow it to carry out the process of reorganisation and relaunch. The change during the year of € 2,000,000 is the
portion of the receivable converted into capital.

Current assets

Current assets are measured in the manner described in paragraphs 8 to 11-bis of art. 2426 of the Civil Code. The
accounting policies applied are explained in the notes on the respective financial statement items.

Current receivables
These total € 7,067,727 at 31 March 2022, up by € 1,191,680 since 31 March 2021 (€ 5,876,047).
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As detailed in the following table, the increase in current receivables is attributable to the increase in deferred tax assets
recorded during the year, the origin of which is given in the specific section of the explanatory notes to which reference
should be made for greater detail.

They are stated at their estimated realisable value as application of the amortisation cost and/or discounting methods would
not be significant for the purpose of providing a true and fair view of the financial position and results of operations.
Changes and maturities of current receivables

The following table shows the information related to changes in current receivables and, if material, their due date.

Balance at the

beginning of the Changes during Balance at the  within one Beyond one

year the year end of the year year year
Trade receivables 2,025 2,307 4,332 4,332 -
Receivables due from subsidiaries 976,386 (144,423) 831,963 831,963 -
Receivables due from parent companies - 300,645 300,645 300,645 -
Receivables due from fellow subsidiaries 349,379 (70,116) 279,263 279,263 -
Tax receivables 2,870,201 (5,932) 2,864,269 2,864,269 -
Deferred tax assets 1,619,656 1,119,139 2,738,795 - -
Other receivables 58,400 (9,940) 48,460 19,890 28,570
Total 5,876,047 1,191,680 7,067,727 4,300,362 28,570

Trade receivables: € 4,332 due from customers.

Receivables due from subsidiaries: € 831,693 in trade receivables deriving from the operational and financial services
provided by the Company as part of the management of the Group.

Receivables from parent companies: € 300,645 for trade receivables due from the parent company Endurance
Technologies Ltd in relation to the sub-licensing of the patents and know-how acquired from Endurance Adler SpA for the
production of clutches and braking systems for motorcycles.

Receivables due from fellow subsidiaries: € 279,263 due from Endurance GmbH for support provided to this German
subsidiary.

Tax receivables: The amount of € 2,864,269 refers for € 2,608,313 to the difference between the IRES charge for the year
and the advances paid in the context of the domestic tax group pursuant to arts. 117/129 of the Consolidated Income Tax
Act (T.U.LLR.) established with Endurance S.p.A., Endurance Engineering s.r.l., Endurance Castings S.p.A. and Endurance
Adler S.p.A., for € 76,817 to recoverable VAT and € 179,139 and withholdings incurred from income generated abroad.

Deferred tax assets: € 2,738,795 is the effect due to the valuation of negative income components the deductibility of
which is postponed to future years, whereas their recoverability is certain. For more details on this item, see the relevant
section below.

Other receivables: € 48,460 miscellancous receivables, of which € 28,570 due beyond one year in relation to guarantee
deposits.
Breakdown of current receivables by geographical area

In terms of the geographical distribution of receivables, the above amounts are due to the Company by Italian
counterparties, except as mentioned in relation to the amounts receivable from Endurance GmbH (€ 279,263) and
Endurance Technologies Ltd (€ 300,645).

Current financial assets

Movements in current financial assets

The movements in current financial assets are analysed in the following table.
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Description I_3a|§1nce at the Changes during the Balance at the end of

beginning of the year year the year
Other securities 4,395,565 24,397 4,419,962
Total 4,395,565 24,397 4,419,962

Other securities comprise short-term investments held by the Company in order to employ available liquidity: these are
insurance policies (for a total of € 1,000,000) and US government bonds, T-Bonds at a nominal rate of 4.5% with maturity
on 15/02/2036 (€ 3,419,962).

Cash and cash equivalents

The following table shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents.

Balance at the Changes during the Balance at the end
beginning of the year year of the year
Bank and postal deposits 22,898,083 (9,415,575) 13,482,508
Cash on hand 357 (145) 212
Total 22,898,440 (9,415,720) 13,482,720

Cash and cash equivalents include own cash and the balance resulting from the cash pooling system. A receivable is
recorded as a contra-entry in the event of a liability, or a payable in the case of an asset from the other participants to the
cash pooling system (companies belonging to the Endurance Group).

Prepaid expenses and accrued income

The following table shows the changes in prepaid expenses and accrued income.

Balance at the Changes during the Balance at the end of

beginning of the year year the year
Prepaid expenses 118,385 11,047 129,432
Total prepaid expenses and accrued income 118,385 11,047 129,432

Prepaid expenses (€ 129,432 at 31 March 2022) mainly include amounts paid in advance by way of insurance premiums
and costs pertaining to subsequent years.

Capitalised financial charges

All interest expense and other financial charges have been expensed during the year. In compliance with paragraph 1.8 of
art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that no financial charges have been capitalised.

Explanatory notes, liabilities and shareholders' equity

The movements in the individual balance sheet items are analysed in detail below, according to current law.

Equity
The components are stated at their carrying amount in accordance with accounting standard OIC 28.
Changes in equity items

The changes in the Company's equity items in the year prior to the year under review (as of 31/03/2021) are as follows:
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Balance at the
beginning of the

Allocation of the prior

year result - Other B s

Balance at the end

year allocations year S R
Capital 16,105,263 - - 16,105,263
Share premium reserve 304,737 - - 304,737
Legal reserve 718,650 184,870 - 903,520
Extraordinary reserve 5,563,997 - - 5,563,997
Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 10,273,019 3,612,527 - 13,785,546
Net income (loss) for the year 3,697,397 (3,697,397) 9,474,770 9,474,770
Total 36,663,063 - 9,474,770 46,137,833

The changes in the Company's equity items in the year under review, ended as of 31/03/2022, are shown below:

Balance at the
beginning of the

Allocation of the

prior year result - Resull oy oz

Other changes

Balance at the

year Other allocations Decreases year end of the year
Capital 16,105,263 - - - 16,105,263
Share premium reserve 304,737 - - - 304,737
Legal reserve 903,520 473,739 - - 1,377,259
Extraordinary reserve 5,563,997 - - - 5,563,997
Cash flow hedging reserve - - 4,014 - (4,014)
Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 13,785,546 9,001,031 - - 22,786,577
Net income (loss) for the year 9,474,770 (9,474,770) - 1,363,804 1,363,804
Total 46,137,833 - 4,014 1,363,804 47,497,623

The Cash flow hedging reserve, which is not available for distribution and cannot be used to cover losses, includes the
portion, recognised net of tax, of the effective portion of the changes in fair value recorded in derivative contracts (Interest
Rate Swaps) in place with reference to the hedging of financial flows associated with planned transactions that are highly
probable; in accordance with the applicable standards, at the time of recognition of the asset or liability involved in the
highly probable transaction, the Company transfers the equivalent effective amount of the derivative instrument from the
reserve, including it directly in the book value of the asset or liability, adjusting the income or cost of the underlying
transaction in the income statement.

Availability and use of equity items

The following table provides details of the components of equity, including their origin, their potential utilisation and
whether they are distributable, as well as the utilisation thereof in the prior three years.

Description Amount Origin/Nature uiﬁf:;:iigl] Amount available
Capital 16,105,263 Capital -
Share premium reserve 304,737 Capital A;B;C 304,737
Legal reserve 1,377,259 Revenue B -
Extraordinary reserve 5,563,997 Revenue A;B;C 5,563,997
Cash flow hedging reserve (4,014) - - -
Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 22,786,577 Revenue A;B;C 22,276,577
Total 46,133,819 28,145,311
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Description Amount Origin/Nature Pp_tent'lal Amount available
utilisation

Amount not distributable 2,738,795

Residual amount distributable 25,406,516

Key: A: for increase in capital; B: to cover losses; C: for distribution to the quotaholders; D: for other statutory requirements; E: other

Cash flow hedging reserve

Pursuant to art. 2427-bis, paragraph 1b-quater of the Italian Civil Code, the following table illustrates the fair value
adjustments to reserves during the year.

Change during the year
- Decrease for change in
fair value

Balance at the end of
the year

Balance at the
beginning of the year

Cash flow hedging reserve - 4,014 (4,014)

The reserve in question represents the balance sheet effect, net of tax, of the fair value of the derivatives used to hedge
risks of a financial nature, in particular IRS contracts to hedge the risks associated with the variability of interest rates on
loans.

Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risks and charges, mainly related to deferred taxation, are recognised in the financial statements
according to OIC 31 (a total of € 1,450,336 at 31 March 2022).

The amount comprises:

- € 1,445,054 of deferred tax liabilities at 31 March 2015 as part of the above merger. The change during the year (€
122,810) reflects the release of the tax effect to match the depreciation of the additional amounts allocated to the
assets of the Company at the time of the merger;

- € 5,282 of the derivative financial instruments represent the negative fair value of certain derivatives used by the
Company, as required by OIC 32.

The following table shows the changes in provisions for risks and charges.

Balance at the Changes during

beginning of the the year - Changes during  Balance at the

the year - Total  end of the year

year Utilisation
Provision for current and deferred taxation 1,567,864 122,810 (122,810) 1,445,054
Derivative financial instruments 35,403 30,121 (30,121) 5,282
Total 1,603,267 152,931 (152,931) 1,450,336

Employee termination indemnities

Employee termination indemnities amount to € 26,667 at 31 March 2022 (€ 16,515 al 31 March 2021). The changes during
the year are summarised below:

selemes s CIrangEs ST Changes during  Balance at the

brzigflandie @i Ui e YIEEY = the year - Total  end of the year
year Provision
Provision for employee termination indemnities 16,515 10,152 10,152 26,667
Total 16,515 10,152 10,152 26,667
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The item includes the portion of cost present in the financial statements relating to the termination indemnity not allocated
to the treasury account with INPS, Previndai and Fondo Cometa.

Payables

Payables total € 49,255,980 at 31 March 2022 (€ 55,959,725 at 31 March 2021).

Pursuant to art. 12, para. 2 of Legislative Decree 139/2015, the Company has elected to measure payables using the
amortised cost method. This election was made on a prospective basis and, therefore, only applies to the payables that have
arisen subsequent to 1 January 2016.

Changes and maturities of payables

The following table shows the changes in payables and any information on their maturities.

Balance at the Changes

beginning of during the Balance at the  Within one  Beyond one

the year year end of the year year year
Due to banks 10,734,910  (5,610,146) 5,124,764 5,124,764
Trade payables 167,982 (50,529) 117,453 117,453
Payables due to subsidiaries 34,426,444 (298,579) 34,127,865 33,488,865 639,000
Payables due to fellow subsidiaries 7,007,121 (2,135,547) 4,871,574 4,871,574
Taxation payable 149,052 589,568 738,620 738,620
Due to pension and social security institutions 437,269 111,431 548,700 548,700
Other payables 3,036,947 690,057 3,727,004 3,727,004
Total 55,959,725 (6,703,745) 49,255,980 48,616,980 639,000

They are detailed as follows:

- Due to banks within one year: € 5,124,764, relating to the current portion of loans arranged directly by the Company;
- Trade payables: € 117,453;
- Due to subsidiaries within one year, € 33,488,865, as analysed below:

a. € 3,000,000 representing a loan from Endurance S.p.A. (classified as a current liability because the contractual
conditions envisage repayment on demand);

b. €26,283,013 due in relation to the cash pooling arrangements, of which
- €15,029,856 due to Endurance S.p.A.
- €7,514,303 due to Endurance Castings S.p.A.
- €989,446 to Endurance Engineering S.r.1.
- €929,884 to Endurance Adler S.p.A.
- €1,819,524 to Veicoli S.r.l.

c. the balance of € 4,205,852 to relationships connected to the tax consolidation for € 4,131,405 and relationships
of a commercial nature for the rest (€ 74,447);

d. Due to subsidiaries beyond one year: € 639,000, relating to deposits received from Endurance S.p.A. for
outstanding rental contracts;

- Payables due to fellow subsidiaries: € 4,871,574 due to Endurance GmbH, a foreign affiliate, comprising € 1,868,452
due under the cash pooling arrangements, a loan of € 3,000,000 (classified as a current liability because the
contractual conditions envisage repayment on demand) and trade payables of € 3,122;

- Tax payables: € 738,620 refer to withholdings on income from employee and self-employed work for € 588,205 and
other tax payables for the difference;
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- Due to pension institutions: € 548,700, mainly payable to INPS and Previndai;

- Other payables within one year: € 3,727,004, being the amounts due to employees for payroll and related accruals, as
well as miscellaneous payables.

Bank debt has significantly decreased compared with the previous year, showing an overall reduction of € 5,610,146,
corresponding to the amount of the loans repaid, not having taken on new finance during the year. It is worth mentioning
that the Company did not take advantage of the moratoria or other bank debt facilitations envisaged as support measures
for businesses to deal with the pandemic emergency that characterised the year.

It should be noted that, on newly signed contracts, application of the amortised cost method resulted in a reduction in the
nominal amount of payables of € 1,597 (€ 8,227 at 31 March 2021).

The following is a breakdown of medium-term loans outstanding at 31 March 2022:

Arrangement date

Bank am(;r;irzita:)ai d ol ci/:n::tsion 10 bzlejr:igaalt Within one year Bey;g;ﬂrone
31/03/2022

UBI 2,500,000 27/03/2017 - 5 - - -
Unicredit 10,000,000 04/07/2017 - 5 1,250,000 1,250,000 -
uBl 3,000,000 19/07/2017 - 5 203,519 203,519 -
BNL 5,000,000 27/10/2017 - 5 750,000 750,000 -
uBl 3,000,000 19/02/2020 - 3 922,842 922,842 -
UBlI 2,000,000 19/02/2020 - 3 2,000,000 2,000,000 -
Application of amort. cost method (1,597) (1,597) -
Total 28,500,000 5,124,764 5,124,764 -

The contracts are settled with reference to 3-month Euribor and have been hedged against interest-rate risk by the
arrangement of IRS contracts with a notional value of € 2,000,000 at 31 March 2022.

Breakdown of payables by geographical area

In terms of the geographical distribution of payables, the Company's counterparties are all Italian, except for the amounts
due to Endurance GmbH (totalling € 4,871,574).

Debt secured by collateral on company assets

Pursuant to paragraph 1.6 of art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code, we can confirm that there is no debt secured by collateral.
Loans from quotaholders

The Company has not received any loans from its quotaholders.

Accrued expenses and deferred income

The following table shows the changes in accrued expenses and deferred income.

Balance at the Changes during the  Balance at the end of
beginning of the year year the year
Accrued expenses 79,466 (22,167) 57,299
Total accrued expenses and deferred income 79,466 (22,167) 57,299

The item in question relates for € 12,714 to accrued expenses calculated on interest and financial charges outstanding on
loans, while the difference is due to other charges pertaining to the year, which will arise in future years.
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Explanatory notes, income statement

The income statement reports the results for the year.

This statement presents the results of operations by summarising the positive and negative components of income that
contributed to them. These positive and negative components of income, recognised pursuant to art. 2425-bis of the Italian
Civil Code, are analysed into the following categories: core business, ancillary and financial activities.

Core business activities include the components of income that were generated from continuing operations in the principal
sector, and which identify and distinguish the economic activities carried out by the Company in the pursuit of its
corporate objectives.

Financial activities comprise those operations that generate financial income and expense.

Ancillary activities comprise those residual operations that generate income in the ordinary course of business that cannot
be classified as financial or core business activities.

Value of production

The property and equity investment management activities of the Company generate revenues principally from the rental
of property, the management and coordination services provided to Group companies and the recharge to subsidiaries and
affiliates of the cost of the executives employed by the Company.

As regards the operating grants included in item AS5, other revenues and income, they refer to the so-called “Super ACE”
tax credit.

Analysis of revenues from sales and services by category of activity

The following table analyses the operating costs incurred during the 2020/2021 financial year on a comparative basis:

Description Year 2021-22 Year 2020-21 Change
Revenues from sales of goods and services 8,551,917 8,562,652 (10,735)
Other income and revenues 1,750,723 249,881 1,500,842
Total 10,302,640 8,812,533 1,490,107

Revenues from sales of goods and services include rental income (€ 2,575,517) and income for services provided under the
service agreement and other services with the subsidiaries and affiliates (€ 5,976,400).

Other revenues and income include the portion for the year, € 1,350,000, of income deriving from the sub-licensing
agreement of patents, trademarks, know-how and other intellectual property rights signed with the parent company
Endurance Technologies Ltd, the recharging of costs of seconded personnel, and ancillary charges towards the affiliate and
other revenues and income for the remainder. As regards the operating grants included in item AS, other revenues and
income, they refer for € 180,000 to the so-called “Super ACE” tax credit.

Cost of production

The following table analyses the operating costs incurred during the 2021-2022 financial year on a comparative basis:

Description Year 2021-22 Year 2020-21 Change
Cost of raw and ancillary materials, consumables and goods for resale 40,715 29,552 11,163
Cost of services 661,091 589,237 71,854
Lease and rental charges 352,964 326,804 26,160
Payroll costs

- Wages and salaries 4,320,152 4,612,472 (292,320)
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- Social contributions 525,247 328,238 197,009

- Employee termination indemnities and other costs 269,635 180,004 89,631

- other costs 6,070 11,800 (5,370)
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,254,455 695,105 559,350
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 853,805 857,491 (3,686)
Other operating expenses 260,433 255,004 5,429
Total 8,544,567 7,885,707 658,860

Production costs increased slightly by 11.7% overall compared with the previous year.

Payroll costs comprise the entire cost of employees, inclusive of merit increases, changes in labour category, holiday pay
and accruals required by law and by collective labour agreements, cost for external collaborators, variable remuneration
components, incentives to leave the company, as well as charges deriving from the management retention plan in favour of
corporate management, which depends on the economic-financial results achieved in Europe and the continued
employment of the personnel concerned for a minimum pre-determined period.

The increase in costs is mainly attributable to the increase in the amortisation of intangible assets following the recent
acquisitions of patents and licences.

Financial income and charges

Financial income for 2021-22 (€ 138,126) refers to accrued interest and capital gains realised on financial securities
(government securities and insurance products) held during the year and loans granted to Group companies. Financial
charges (€ 155,829) mainly relate to the interest incurred on the intercompany loan (€ 72,119) and on the loans from banks
(€ 83,710).

Adjustments to financial assets and liabilities

The write-down, equal to € 24,397, of the securities entered in current assets not constituting fixed assets reflects the
higher market value of the securities recorded at the end of the year. This revaluation refers to US government bonds, T-
Bonds with a nominal rate of 4.5% maturing on 15.02.2036.

The revaluation of derivative instruments by € 35,403 reflects the mark-to-market adjustment recorded at the reporting
date.

Amount and nature of revenues/costs of individual significance

During the current year, no revenues or other positive components deriving from exceptional events were recorded.

During the current year, no costs deriving from exceptional events were recorded.

Income taxes for the year, current and deferred

The company has accrued for taxation for the year based on the application of tax legislation in force. The tax charge for
the year consists of current taxation, as resulting from the tax returns, of deferred taxation relating to positive or negative
components of income, taxable or deductible, respectively, in fiscal years that differ from the year in which the item is
accounted for statutory reporting purposes.

The composition of taxation for the year split between current taxation and the deferred tax asset item is provided in the
following table:

Year 2021-22 Year 2020-21
Income taxes 436,366 (1,873,092)
Current taxation
of which: IRES for the year (current) - -
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of which: IRAP for the year (current) 365,172 102,943
of which: Taxation relating to prior years (791) (309,484)
Consolidation charges 1,312,666 93,972
Net change in deferred taxation (1,240,681) (1,760,523)

They are detailed in the following tables:

- adescription of the temporary differences that have given rise to the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets,
with details of the rate applied,changes in the year and the amounts credited or debited to the income statement or to
quotaholders' equity;

- the amount of deferred tax assets recognised relating to losses for the year or prior years and the reasons for their
recognition; the amount not yet recognised and the reasons for the non-recognition;

- items excluded from the computation and the reasons for their exclusion.

Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities and their impact

IRES Tax IRAP Tax

A) Temporary differences

Total deductible temporary differences 73,846 -
Total taxable temporary differences 4,489,629 4,605,783
Net temporary differences 4,415,783 4,605,783
B) Tax effects

Provision for deferred tax liability (assets) at the beginning of the year (270,956) 219,164
Deferred tax liability (assets) of the year (1,059,788) (180,893)
Provision for deferred tax liability (assets) at the end of the year (1,330,744) 38,271

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been determined using the rates likely to be in force during the years when the
temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The current rates have been used with specific regard to deferred tax assets, being IRES 24% and IRAP 5.57%.

The rates applied when the provisions were made have been used with regard to the release of deferred tax liabilities
(IRAP rate 3.9%).

The balance of deferred tax assets shown in the table is the net of provisions for the year less the deferred tax assets
recognised in previous years and reversed during the period.

Specifically, there was a simultaneous reversal of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The changes in deferred tax assets are summarised in the following table:

Balance at the Changes during Changes during n
S _ : Changes during  Balance at the end
beginning of the the Vel th.e.yee_lr the year - Total of the year
year Provision Utilisation
Deferred tax assets 1,619,656 1,136,862 17,723 1,119,139 2,738,795
Total 1,619,656 1,136,862 17,723 1,119,139 2,738,795

The provisions mainly refer to deferred tax assets calculated on the temporary difference generated by the way that the
sub-licensing of patents and know-how is taxed.

The utilisations mainly concern the temporary differences that became effective during the year under review.
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Explanatory notes, other information

The additional disclosures required by the Italian Civil Code are presented below.

Employment data

The following table sets out average employee numbers by labour category computed on the basis of daily averages:

Average number of employees broken down by category

Executives White collar Total employees

Average number 9 4 13

The workforce at 31 March 2022 (consisting solely of Company employees) comprises 13 persons.

Fees, advances and loans granted to directors and statutory auditors and commitments
accepted on their behalf

The following schedule provides the information required by art. 2427, point 16 of the Italian civil code, with the
clarification that no advances or loans have been granted and no commitments, in the form of guarantees of any kind, have
been accepted on behalf of the members of the Board of Directors.

Directors Statutory Auditors

Fees 40,000 48,880

Fees of the independent auditor or firm of auditors

During the year, the following amounts (comprising fees and expenses) were paid to the independent auditors (Deloitte &
Touche S.p.A):

- € 50,925 for the independent audit of the accounts, comprising the financial statements of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as for checking the Group Reporting
Package, prepared from the consolidated financial statements and submitted for the purpose of consolidating the
Endurance Technologies Group;

- € 1,050 for the audit work performed in order to sign the tax declarations;

- €4,900 for services provided by other members of the same network as the independent auditors.

Categories of shares issued by the Company

This section of the explanatory notes is not relevant, since the Company's capital does not consist of shares.

Securities issued by the company

The Company has not issued any securities that fall under the provisions of art. 2427, para. 18 of the Italian Civil Code.

Details on other financial instruments issued by the Company

The Company has not issued any other financial instruments pursuant to art. 2346, para. 6, of the Italian Civil Code.
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Commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities not reported in the balance sheet

There are no commitments, guarantees or contingent liabilities that have not been reported in the balance sheet.

Information about capital and loans allocated to a specific business project

Allocation of capital to a specific business project

We can confirm that, at the balance sheet date, there has been no allocation of capital to a specific business project as per
no. 20 of art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code.

Loans for a specific business project

We can confirm that, at the balance sheet date, there are no loans provided for a specific business project as per no. 21 of
art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code.

Information about related-party transactions

Transactions were carried out with related parties during the year; these transactions were entered into on an arm's length
basis and, accordingly, in accordance with current legislation, no additional disclosure has been provided.

Information about off-balance sheet agreements

No off-balance sheet agreements were entered into during the year.

Information about significant events arising subsequent to the reporting date

Pursuant to point 22-quater of art. 2427 of the Italian civil code, it is confirmed that no events with a significant effect on
the economic and financial position have occurred subsequent to the reporting date.

In the first few months of the subsequent year, despite the persistence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company did not
suffer any impacts of an exceptional nature and continued its activity in compliance with the regulations then in force to
contain infection and the spread of the virus.

It has to be said that the conflict in Ukraine constitutes a strong element of uncertainty as it is impossible to foresee the
outcomes and consequences of this crisis on the fate of the world economy and on the Automotive industry. At present,
taking into account the actions that have been taken, we believe that the effects of the conflict, despite being heavily
penalising (especially because of the hike in the prices of energy commodities and raw materials), will not be such as to
jeopardise the Company's and the Group's business continuity, also because they do not have direct relationships with
customers and suppliers in the countries affected by the conflict.

Companies that prepare consolidated financial statements for the larger/smaller group of
companies to which the Company belongs as a subsidiary

The following information is provided about the company that prepares consolidated financial statements for the
larger/smaller group of companies to which the Company belongs as a subsidiary:

Larger group Smaller group
Company name Endurance Technologies Limited (*) n/a
Town (if in Italy) or foreign State Aurangabad (India) n/a
Tax code (Italian companies) - n/a
Place where the.consolidated financial Registered office: Aurangabad (India) - India Stock Exchange: n/a
statements are filed NSE and BSE

(*) Endurance Technologies Limited, parent company, is listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).
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Information about derivative financial instruments pursuant to art. 2427-bis of the Italian
Civil Code

Pursuant to art. 2427-bis of the Italian Civil Code and in order to present a true and fair view of the Company's
commitments, appropriate details are provided below about the fair value, extent and nature of the derivative financial
instruments held by the Company (amounts in Euro), grouped by counterparty:

Number of - ; q Fair value at
Type of contract contracts Original notional value Notional at 31/03/2022 31/03/2022
Interest rate Swap 2 15,000,000 2,000,000 (5,282)
TOTAL 2 15,000,000 2,000,000 (5,282)

Summary financial statements of the company which exercises management control and
coordination activities

The Company is subject to management and coordination by its indirect parent company, Endurance Technologies
Limited, with registered offices at E-92, MIDC Industrial Area, Waluj, Aurangabad, Maharashtra, India, which directly
and indirectly owns the entire share capital of the Company.

The following amounts taken from the latest approved financial statements of Endurance Technologies Limited are stated
in millions of Indian Rupees. For the sake of clarity, the Rupee/Euro exchange rate at 31 March 2021 was 86,099 (82.8985
on 31 March 2020) - (source Thomson Reuters/RBI):

Balance sheet

At 31/03/2021

At 31/03/2020

Assets

Non-current assets

Fixed assets, net 14,871.19 15,396.06
Investments and other non-current assets 4,041.15 4,826.73
Current assets 15,464.13 9,605.88
Assets held for sale - -
Total Assets 34,376.47 29,828.67

Balance sheet

At 31/03/2021

At 31/03/2020

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Shareholders' equity 27,082.57 23,167.64
Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial liabilities 27.27 42.84
Other non-current liabilities 300.35 339.39
Current liabilities
Current financial liabilities 5,991.54 5,643.49
Other current liabilities 974.74 635.31
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 34,376.47 29,828.67

Income Statement

At 31/03/2021

At 31/03/2020

Revenues 47,865.83 49,747.57
Operating costs 40,414.48 41,962.53
Depreciation and amortisation 2,034.15 1,992.48
Financial charges 47.97 108.15
Non-recurring income/(expense) (112.25) -

Income before tax 5,256.98 5,684.41
Taxation for the year (current and deferred) 1,334.99 1,407.49

Income (loss) for the year 3,921.99 4,276.92
OCI - Other comprehensive income (7.06) (43.44)

Total statement of comprehensive income 3,914.93 4,233.48
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The following section describes relations with the company that provides management control and coordination services
and with the other affiliates, as well as the effect of those activities on the operations of the Company and its results.

Information pursuant to art. 1, paragraph 125, of Law 124 of 4 August 2017

Art. 1, paragraph 125, of Law 124/2017 introduced the obligation to provide evidence in the explanatory notes of any cash
amounts received during the year by way of grants, contributions, paid appointments or any other economic advantages of
any kind received from public administrations and from those mentioned in paragraph 125 of the same article.

Although the following assistance is not thought to fall within the scope of application of the law, it is confirmed that the
following cash flows were received during the year:

- € 180,000 deriving from the transformation into a tax credit accrued for the so-called "super ACE" pursuant to art. 19
of Decree Law 73 of 25 May 2021, converted, with modifications, by Law 106 of 23 July 2021.

Proposed allocation of profits or coverage of losses

Quotaholders, in light of the above, the Board of Directors would like to propose allocating the net income for the year of
€ 1,363,804 as follows:

- €68,190 to the legal reserve;
- €1,295,614 to retained earnings.

Explanatory notes, closing section

Quotaholders,

We confirm that these financial statements, which comprise the balance sheet, income statement, statement of cash flow
and explanatory notes, give a true and fair view of the financial position and results for the year and agree with the books
of account. We therefore invite you to approve the draft financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022, together with
the proposed allocation of net income, as submitted by the Board of Directors.

The financial statements are true and fair and agree with the books of account.
Lombardore, 16/05/2022

For the Board of Directors

The Managing Director

Massimo Venuti
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Quota capital: € 16,105,263.00 subscribed and fully paid
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Sole quotaholder company

Management control and coordination: ENDURANCE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors

Financial statements at 31/03/2022

To the Quotaholders,

Pursuant to the current articles of association, the Board of Statutory Auditors has been assigned the task of
administrative supervision, while the independent audit was assigned to Deloitte & Touche S.p.a. by the Quotaholders'
Meeting of 30/06/2020. Accordingly, this report only explains the supervisory work that we performed in accordance
with the law.

Report to the Shareholder's Meeting pursuant to art. 2429, paragraph
2 of the Italian Civil Code - Administrative supervision

During the course of the financial year ended 31/03/2022, our activities were performed in compliance with applicable
legislation and the principles of conduct for the Board of Statutory Auditors issued by the Italian Accounting Profession
(as represented by the Consiglio Nazionale dei Dottori Commercialisti e degli Esperti Contabili).

Activities carried out by the Board of Statutory Auditors during the year ended 31/03/2022

We supervised compliance with the law, with the articles of association and with principles of proper administration.

We attended Quotaholders' Meetings and Board Meetings, in respect of which, based on information made available, no
matters came to our attention to indicate that there had been any infringements of the law or of the articles of association,
nor transactions which were clearly imprudent, risky, likely to give rise to a conflict of interest or such as to compromise
the integrity of the company's assets.

We acquired information from the directors on the status of capital transactions, with respect to which we have no
particular observations to make.

We obtained information from the directors on the company's performance and the likely outlook, as well as on the
most significant transactions, in terms of size or characteristics, entered into by the company and by its subsidiaries
and, based on the information obtained, we have no particular findings to report.

We met with the independent auditors and, with reference to those meetings, no significant information or data emerged
that should be disclosed in this report.
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We gained knowledge on and supervised, within the scope of our duties, the adequacy of and the operations of the
company's organisational structure by obtaining information from function heads, with respect to which we have no
particular findings to report.

We gained knowledge on and supervised, within the scope of our duties, the adequacy of and the operations of the
company's administrative-accounting system, as well as on the reliability of the latter in correctly presenting the results
of operations, by obtaining information from function heads, from the independent auditors and from an examination of
corporate documents, and, with respect thereto, we have no particular findings to report.

No complaints were presented to us as per Art. 2408 of the Italian Civil Code.
During the course of the year, we did not issue any opinions required by law.

During the course of our supervisory activities, as described above, no other significant matters arose that are worthy of
inclusion in this report.

This report therefore summarises our activity with regard to the requirements of art. 2429, para. 2 of the Italian Civil
Code, namely information on:

o the results for the year;

o the work performed in fulfilment of our legal duties; the observations and proposals regarding the financial
statements, with particular regard to any use made by the administrative body of the exception permitted by art.
2423, para. 5 of the Italian Civil Code;

In any case, we are at your complete disposal to examine any other aspects during the Quotaholders' Meeting.

The work performed by us covered the entire financial year and regular meetings were held during the year pursuant to
art. 2404 of the Italian Civil Code.

During our periodic checks, we gained knowledge on how the Company's activities were evolving, paying particular
attention to contingent problems in order to identify the economic and financial impact on the result for the year and on
the balance sheet, as well as any risks.

Minutes were drawn up of these meetings and duly signed for unanimous approval.

Supervisory activities pursuant to art. 2403 onwards of the Italian Civil Code

The draft financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022, provided to us for our examination by the Board of
Directors pursuant to art. 2429 of the Italian Civil Code, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Legislative Decree no. 127/91 and consist of:

e balance sheet

e income statement

e statement of cash flows
e explanatory notes

The result for the year is net income of € 1,363,804, as may be seen from the summary figures provided below.

Balance sheet

Description FY 2022 FY 2021 Difference
FIXED ASSETS 73,188,064 70,508,369 2,679,695
CURRENT ASSETS 24,970,409 33,170,052 (8,199,643)
PREPAID EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME 129,432 118,385 11,047
TOTAL ASSETS 98,287,905 103,796,806 (5,508,901)
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Description FY 2022 FY 2021 Difference
QUOTAHOLDERS' EQUITY 47,497,623 46,137,833 1,359,790
PROVISION FOR RISKS AND CHARGES 1,450,336 1,603,267 (152,931)
PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE TERMINATION INDEMNITIES 26,667 16,515 10,152
PAYABLES 49,255,980 55,959,725 (6,703,745)
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME 57,299 79,466 (22,167)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND QUOTAHOLDERS' EQUITY 98,287,905 103,796,806 (5,508,901)
Income Statement

Description FY 2022 FY 2021 Difference
VALUE OF PRODUCTION 10,302,640 8,812,533 1,490,107
REVENUES FROM SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES 8,551,917 8,562,652 (10,735)
PRODUCTION COST 8,544,567 7,885,707 658,860
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PRODUCTION VALUE AND COST (A - B) 1,758,073 926,826 831,247
RESULT BEFORE TAXES (A-B+-C+-D) 1,800,170 7,601,678 (5,801,508)
INCOME TAXES FOR THE YEAR, CURRENT AND DEFERRED 436,366 (1,873,092) 2,309,458
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 1,363,804 9,474,770 (8,110,966)

Due to the fact that we were not appointed as independent auditors of the financial statements, we have limited ourselves
to monitoring the overall approach to their preparation and their general compliance with the law as regards their format
and structure and we do not have any particular observations to make in this regard.

More precisely, we note that:

e the accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements at 31/03/2022 comply with the Italian Civil

Code as amended by Decree Law 139/2015;

e the Directors have provided information on the Company's performance and on the outlook for operations;

o the balance sheet and income statement formats adopted by the Company comply with articles 2424, 2424 -bis,

2425 and 2425-bis of the Italian Civil Code;

e pursuant to art. 2426 para. 6, of the Italian Civil Code, goodwill is recorded in the balance sheet, the net carrying
value of which amounts to € 653,136 at 31/03/2022, recorded in relation to business combinations that occurred
in previous years and with our consent as the Board of Statutory Auditors, who verified the requisites for

registration.

We have verified compliance with the law regarding the structure of the directors’ report on operations and we do not

have any particular observations to make thereon.

As far as we are aware, in the preparation of the financial statements, there was no failure by the directors to comply with

the law pursuant to paragraph 5 of Art. 2423 of the Italian Civil Code.

Result for the year

The net result ascertained by the Directors for the year ended 31/03/2022, as shown in the financial statements, is positive

for € 1,363,804.
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We do not have any observations to make on the allocation of the net result for the year proposed by the Directors.

Conclusion

Also considering the results of the work performed by the independent auditors, as explained in their audit report, issued
without exceptions or remarks on 17/05/2022, we unanimously believe that there are no reasons why the Quotaholders'
Meeting should not approve the draft annual financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022, as drafted and proposed
by the Directors.

Milan, 18/05/2022

The Board of Statutory Auditors

Fulvio Mastrangelo

Fabio Greco

Massimo Carera
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 14 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE No. 39 OF JANUARY 27, 2010

To the Quotaholders of
Endurance Overseas S.r.l.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Endurance Overseas S.r.l. (the “Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the statement of income and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended and the explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the Italian law governing financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ethical requirements applicable under Italian law to the audit of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other matters

Pursuant to art. 2497-bis, first paragraph, of the Italian Civil Code, Endurance Overseas S.r.l. has disclosed
that it is subject to management and coordination of its activities by Endurance Technologies Limited
(India) and, therefore, has indicated in the notes to the financial statements the key financial data from
the most recent financial statements of such company. Our opinion on the financial statements of
Endurance Overseas S.r.l. does not extend to such data.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the Italian law governing financial statements, and, within the terms established by law,
for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they have identified the existence of the conditions for the
liquidation of the Company or the termination of the business or have no realistic alternatives to such
choices.

The Board of Statutory Auditors is responsible for overseeing, within the terms established by law, the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as required by
ISA Italia, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Opinion pursuant to art. 14, paragraph 2 (e) of Legislative Decree 39/10

The Directors of Endurance Overseas S.r.l. are responsible for the preparation of the report on
operations of the Company as at March 31, 2022, including its consistency with the related financial
statements and its compliance with the law.

We have carried out the procedures set forth in the Auditing Standard (SA Italia) n. 720B in order to
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations with the financial statements of the
Company as at March 31, 2022 and on its compliance with the law, as well as to make a statement about
any material misstatement.

In our opinion, the report on operations is consistent with the financial statements of Endurance
Overseas S.r.l. as at March 31, 2022 and is prepared in accordance with the law.

With reference to the statement referred to in art. 14, paragraph 2 (e), of Legislative Decree 39/10,
made on the basis of the knowledge and understanding of the entity and of the related context acquired
during the audit, we have nothing to report.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE S.p.A.

Signed by
Giorgio Barbieri
Partner

Turin, Italy
May 17, 2022

This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of international readers. Accordingly, only
the original text in Italian language is authoritative.
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Report on operations
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2022

To the Quotaholders,

The explanatory notes provide information about the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021;
in compliance with art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, this document provides information about the situation and
performance of the Endurance Group (comprising the Parent Company, Endurance Overseas S.r.l., and its subsidiaries,
Endurance S.p.A., Endurance Engineering S.r.1., Endurance Castings S.p.A. and Endurance Adler S.p.A. and Veicoli S.r.1.,
together the "Group"). This report, prepared with amounts shown in whole euro (unless otherwise indicated), accompanies
the consolidated financial statements in order to provide information about the Group's earnings, financial position and
operations, together, where possible, with historical facts and an assessment of future prospects.

Information on the Company and the Group

Matters concerning the economy in general and the results of operations:

The most significant event that marked the year to March 2022 is undoubtedly the return of war scenarios in Europe, with
the dramatic conflict in Ukraine still ongoing sadly at the time of preparing this report. In response to the humanitarian
crisis that unfortunately involved the population following the conflict, Western countries intervened by imposing
sanctions that have exacerbated the already existing imbalances, particularly in the supply of raw materials and energy
sources. Apart from the recent geopolitical events, which resulted in the military confrontation, the whole of 2021-22
featured by the series of extraordinary events that involved the international community, influencing the market context of
the Automotive sector. The first quarter of the year (April-June 2021) began with confirmation of the economy's recovery,
facilitated by a progressive easing of the restrictions introduced to deal with the pandemic. The reopening of business
contributed to the growth in GDP (+5.3% in the Euro area for 2021) and the Automotive sector also benefited from this
recovery. However, starting from the second quarter (July-September), production slowdowns began due to the problems
that car manufacturers were encountering in the procurement of semiconductors. The lack of chips and other electronic
components then continued over the course of the following quarters, causing a sharp decline in vehicle registrations
compared with both the previous year (2020-21, which was heavily influenced by Covid) and with 2019-20 (the last year
that enjoyed normal conditions). The spread of the Omicron variant, which forced the reintroduction of health measures,
and the increase in inflation due to the rise in the prices of raw materials and energy, also contributed to the slowdown. In
fact, gas and electricity prices began to rise in the autumn, affecting all international markets, Europe in particular, with the
result that the flow of gas from Russia to European countries decreased. In October-December, the material component of
energy suffered price hikes of around 400% compared with the historical average of the previous two years. These
increases were then further aggravated in the following quarter by the outbreak of war. This extraordinary and
unpredictable explosion in energy prices has had a significant impact on the Company's results, as explained in greater
detail below in the section where we analyse our results.

In this complex macroeconomic scenario, registrations of new vehicles during the financial year (from April '21 to March
'22) fell overall by -4.9%, considering the European Union and the UK market (the EU on its own -6.3%), with a strong
recovery in the first quarter (+66.7%, due more than anything else to the low volumes of the previous year marked by
generalised lockdowns) and a contraction of -23.6% in the second quarter, -23.4% in the third quarter and -10.8% in the
last quarter. As these were generalised effects, the decreases affected all countries and all car manufacturers with the
exception of Spain (+2.4%) and the UK (+4.2%), which had been heavily penalised the previous year. The VW group, the
main manufacturer with almost a third of the EU market, recorded a drop in registrations of -8.5%, Stellantis one of -

Report on operations 1



ENDURANCE OVERSEAS SRL Financial statements at 31/03/2022

10.8%, Renault -11.7%, BMW -3.7% and Daimler -12.6%. In the last quarter of the year (January - March 2022), the main
car manufacturers recorded the following trends in terms of registrations: VW -15.6%, Stellantis -23.9%, Renault -8.1%,
BMW -11.46% and Daimler -9.4%.

The data on the production of P&CV vehicles published by IHS MARKIT for the calendar year 2021 show a growth in
world production of cars of +2.7% (compared with -16.9% the previous year, going from 61.5 million to 63.2 million
vehicles) compared with +3.6% of total registrations. The change by geographical macro area shows the following: EU -
5.7%, North America -2.4%, South America +11.2%, Asia +6.7%, Middle East and Africa +15.1%. Within the European
Union, Germany was the leading producer with output of 2.9 million vehicles (albeit down 13.2% compared with the
previous year), followed by Spain with 1.6 million vehicles (-8.9%), the Czech Republic 1.1 million (-3.4%), Slovakia 1.0
million (+2.7%), France 0.9 million (-1.8%), Italy, Romania and Hungary 0.4 million (-7.9%, -4.0% and -3.0%
respectively) compared with the previous year.

In the same period, exports of vehicles from the European Union grew by +3.6% in value, as did imports, which grew in
value by +2.3%.

In 2021, the market share of traditional combustion vehicles stood at 59.6% (having been 75.5% the previous year) of the
EU market (40.0% petrol and 19.6% diesel), while hybrid vehicles (HEVs) reached 19.6% (11.9% the previous year) and
rechargeable electric vehicles (ECVs) accounted for 18.0% (10.5% the previous year) of registrations, with a 9.1% share
going to pure electric vehicles (BEV) and 8.9% to plug-in hybrids (PHEV).

From an industrial point of view, it should be remembered that the Company had to cope with erratic logistical planning on
the part of customers as they tried to adapt to dysfunctions in the supply chains (especially in the availability of
semiconductors). This meant having to face periods of total or partial suspension of production, in some cases having
recourse to temporary lay-offs with State redundancy benefits.

In this extremely complex market situation, characterised by a series of negative external factors, the Group still managed
to achieve positive results.

Key events

As mentioned previously, the Company again suffered the effects of the pandemic during the year.

In any case, the preventive measures introduced and those adopted over time in accordance with the regulatory provisions
and protocols, made it possible to contain cases of positivity to the virus, guaranteeing the safety of all workplaces.

The technical-commercial activities carried out during FY2021/2022 were particularly positive and resulted in the
acquisition of new and important orders. In particular:

- in die casting and machining market, new projects were awarded that will generate about € 60 million in annual sales
when fully operational. The orders obtained mainly concern powertrain components destined for end customers
Stellantis, CNH and BMW. They relate to conventional, hybrid, and electric applications that will go into production
from FY 2023/24 onward.

- in the context of the plastic molding market, new orders that will generate about € 3 million in annual sales when
fully operational. The orders obtained mainly concern components destined for end customers Stellantis, CNH and
Tyco that will enter production as early as FY 2022/23 onwards.

The activity and collaboration in the industrial and technical field carried out with the ultimate parent company Endurance
Technologies Ltd also continued, particularly with reference to activities related to applications in the motorcycle field.

Fo what operations’ reorganizations are concerned, during the fiscal year the moving of Endurance Engineering S.r.l.’s
activities from the Turin site to the new one in Grugliasco were completed, with the adaptation of the premises to the
specific needs and optimizations foreseen for the molding of current plastic components and those related to new projects.
In addition, the process of acquiring ownership of the properties located in Bione (BS), pertaining to Endurance Castings
S.p.A., was completed with the final redemption.

Significant corporate events that took place in FT 2021/2022 include:

- On May 26, 2021, by a deed drawn up by Notary Agostini in Milan rep. no. 84786/17517, the parent company
Endurance Overseas S.r.l. provided for the capitalization of Endurance Adler S.p.A., through a capital increase in the
amount of Euro 2.0 million (of which Euro 1.28 million as an overpricing). As a result of the minority shareholder
waiving his option right, the Group's stake in Endurance Adler S.p.A. increased to 99.86 percent.
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Subsequently, on March 28, 2022 the Endurance Overseas S.r.l. purchased from the minority shareholder Amfin
Holding S.p.A. the nr.1,200 remaining shares (representing 0.14% of the share capital), of Endurance Adler S.p.A.
(for the amount of Euro 6 thousand), reaching the total shareholding in the subsidiary company.

On November 12, 2021, the Group, through its parent company Endurance Overseas S.r.l., acquired 100% of the
capital of the company Veicoli S.r.l. (an innovative SME operating in the provision of fleet and vehicle management
services through its internally developed software platform) for the amount of Euro 731 thousand.

Subsequently, on December 14, 2021, the Group, in order to provide the subsidiary with the resources useful for the
implementation of the growth and development program, capitalized the newly acquired company through the
payment of Euro 1.8 million, of which Euro 0.5 million as an increase in share capital and Euro 1.3 million to the
Capital Reserve item. At the same time, the corporate statute was amended, providing, among other things, for a
change in the company's registered office, now located in Turin, via Arsenale nr.33, and the shifting of the fiscal
year-end date to March 31, consistent with other group companies.

The acquisition of Veicoli S.r.l. by the Endurance Group pursues an objective of expanding the range of products and
services offered in the mobility sector as a provider of innovative solutions. The skills and knowledge of the
company's development team will then also be made available to the Group's existing businesses for the development

of projects in different areas.

Financial position

To facilitate a better understanding of the Group's financial position, a reclassified balance sheet is set out below.

Balance Sheet - Assets

Item FY 2021-2022 % FY 2020-2021 % Change Change %
WORKING CAPITAL 118,941,987 49.89% 138,681,689 54.28% (19,739,702)  -14.23%
Immediate liquidity 32,616,413  13.68% 51,059,053 19.98% (18,442,640)  -36.12%
Cash and cash equivalents 32,616,413  13.68% 51,059,053 19.98% (18,442,640)  -36.12%
Deferred liquidity 56,956,543  23.89% 61,366,002 24.02% (4,409,459) -7.19%
Current receivables included in working capital 23,495,069 9.85% 28,671,862 11.22% (5,176,793)  -18.06%
Current portion of non current receivables 329,480 0.14% 493,188  0.19% (163,708)  -33.19%
Financial assets 32,325,948  13.56% 31,406,015 12.29% 919,933  100.00%
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 806,046 0.34% 794,937 0.31% 11,109 1.40%
Inventories 29,369,031 12.32% 24,981,634 9.78% 4,387,397 17.56%
Non current assets held for sale - 0.00% 1,275,000 0.50% (1,275,000) -100.00%
FIXED ASSETS 119,487,164 50.11% 116,807,919 45.72% 2,679,245 2.29%
Intangible assets 7,510,792 3.15% 6,935,662 2.71% 575,130 8.29%
Tangible fixed assets 99,105,824  41.57% 100,258,622 39.24% (1,152,798) -1.15%
Financial fixed assets 2,102,509 0.88% 324,843 0.13% 1,777,666  547.24%
l;l:‘;;;rrrent portion of receivables included in working 10,768,039 4.52% 9288792  3.64% 1479247 15.93%
CAPITAL EMPLOYED 238,429,151 100.00% 255,489,608 100.00% (17,060,457) -6.68%

With reference to the asset structure of the Company Group, it is noted in particular:

- with regard to current assets

o the reduction (for a total of € 17.5 million, including the effect of changes in the consolidation perimeter for € 0.1
million) in cash and cash equivalents and financial assets (represented by investments for the Group liquidity
management) recorded based on the positive cash flows from operations accrued by the Group, net of capital
expenditures and repayment of medium- and long-term loans, as described below (also refer to the data pertaining

to the consolidated cash flow statement);

o the trend of other elements of working capital, including in particular the reduction (approximately € 5.2 million)
in the value of current receivables (particularly in relation to the trend in business volumes recorded in the final
part of 2021/2022, which experienced the described slowdowns in the reference market, in comparison with the
corresponding period of the previous year which had recorded a recovery phase post the first pandemic waves)
and the increase in inventories (€ 4.4 million), for the same reasons described above, which led to an increase in
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outstanding inventories at the end of the current fiscal year as a result of the reduction in absorption planning by
customers, as well as due to the increase recorded during the year in the value of the Group's main raw material
(secondary aluminium alloys);

among current assets, it has to be noted the change in fixed assets held for sale (€ 1.3 million as of March 31%,
2022) represented by the value of the portion of the property in Rovereto pertaining to Endurance Adler S.p.A.,
which was involved, at the end of the previous year, in a sale preliminary agreement, subsequently not finalized in
the current year; as a consequence, re-classification of the amount (net of depreciation accrued in the year) among
tangible fixed assets occurred, also taking into account the modified expectation for the industrial site’s
utilization;

- with reference to long-term assets, in particular, following trends are registered:
o the increase in the net value of intangible assets (by € 0.6 million) and the decrease in tangible assets (by € 1.2

million) as a result of the combined effect of the following factors:

= recording of depreciation and amortization for the period (for a total of € 18.9 million, including the effect
connected to the revaluation carried out at the end of the previous year, pursuant to Article 110 of Decree
Law No. 104 of August 14, 2020, converted into Law 126/2020);

» investments made during the year, amounting to € 2.0 million among intangible assets, (mainly referred to
the capitalization of development costs) and € 14.4 million among tangible assets, related to the increase of
production capacity for newly acquired orders, in particular with VW customers (including those for the
AUDI brand) and Stellantis, as well as the strengthening of foundry facilities (both in Chivasso and Bione)
and for the set-up of operations in the plastics segment following the completion of the move to the new
production site in Grugliasco;

= the inclusion of the value of fixed assets classified as held for sale as at March 31%, 2021 as described above;

= net of disposals recorded during the period (for a net value of approximately € 0.2 million);

o the increase in medium/long-term receivables mainly refers to the increase in the balance of deferred tax assets

recorded during the year (€ 10.8 million as at March 31%, 2022), both with reference to the differences in statutory
and tax values, in particular of fixed assets and provisions for risks and write-downs and in relation to the
recognition at consolidated level of negative taxable income, following the application of extra deductions related
to the use of the benefits linked to the Industry 4.0 incentives (so called “super-depreciation” and ‘“hyper-

depreciation”) connected with the significant investments made by the Group in recent years.

Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Quotaholders' Equity

Item FY 2021-2022 % FY 2020-2021 % Change Change %
CURRENT LIABILITIES 104,392,988  43.78% 112,507,119  44.04% (8,114,131) 7.21%
Current payables 103,021,460  43.21% 112,006,534  43.84% (8,985,074) -8.02%
Accrued expenses and deferred income 1,371,528 0.58% 500,585 0.20% 870,943 173.99%
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 31,016,258 13.01% 48,154,113  18.85% (17,137,855) -35.59%
Non current payables 19,985,185 8.38% 37,846,793  14.81% (17,861,608) -47.19%
Provision for risks and charges 6,189,616 2.60% 6,708,909 2.63% (519,293) -7.74%
Employee termination indemnity 3,010,523 1.26% 2,949,445 1.15% 61,078 2.07%
Accrued expenses and deferred income 1,830,934 0.77% 648,966 0.25% 1,181,968 182.13%
QUOTAHOLDERS' EQUITY 103,019,905  43.21% 94,828,376  37.12% 8,191,529 8.64%
Quotaholders' equity attributable to the Group 103,019,905 43.21% 94,825,042 37.12% 8,194,863 8.64%
Quota capital 16,105,263 6.75% 16,105,263 6.30% - 0.00%
Reserves 21,237,490 8.91% 19,250,169 7.53% 1,987,321 10.32%
Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 58,993,207 24.74% 46,821,884  18.33% 12,171,323 25.99%
Net income (loss) for the year 6,683,945 2.80% 12,647,726 4.95% (5,963,781) -47.15%
gllizt:shtolders' equity attributable to minority i} ) 3,334 ) (3,334) )
FINANCING SOURCES 238,429,151 100.00% 255,489,608 100.00% (17,060,457) -6.68%

With reference to the structure of the Group's liabilities, the following are highlighted in particular:

- within the scope of third party capital, the main changes regard
o the reduction of approximately € 8.1 million in current liabilities, in relation to the volumes trend recorded in the
latter part of the year under review compared to the previous year, consistent with what has been described in

relation to current receivables;
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o the reduction in consolidated liabilities, for a total of € 17.1 million, mainly related to the process of repayment of
loan agreements on the basis of contractual schedule (taking into account that the renewal of the Group's
financing lines took place, as opposed to previous year, in April 2022, through the signing of new loans for

approximately € 20 million).

Also worth mentioning is the reduction due to the use/release of provisions for risks (accrued in previous years)
for approximately € 0.5 million and the increase in deferred income (€ 1.2 million), in particular related to the
recording of portions pertaining to future years of income related to the recognition of tax credits for investments
in capital assets (related to the most recent investments in high-tech assets, to support production projects);

- for what quotaholders’ equity is concerned , the increase by a total of € 8.2 million, following the recognition of the
positive result for the period (€ 6.7 million) and the recognition, with a direct impact on Group’s consolidated Equity
(for € 1.5 million), of the Cash flow hedge reserve, which includes the amount, recorded net of the related tax effect,
of the effective portion of the changes in Fair value of derivative contracts entered into for the purpose of cash flow
hedging associated with highly probable planned transactions.

The change in the scope of consolidation (detailed below with reference to the balances of Veicoli S.r.l. as of the date of
first consolidation, November 1%, 2021) did not lead to significant changes in the Group's asset and liability balances

(amounts expressed in thousands of Euro):

ASSETS 01/11/2021 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 01/11/2021

WORKING CAPITAL 169 CURRENT LIABILITIES 115
Immediate liquidity 127  Current payables 106
Cash and cash equivalents 127  Accrued expenses and deferred income 9
Deferred liquidity 42 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 152
Current receivables included in working capital 42  Current payables 58
Current portion of non-current receivables - Accrued expenses and deferred income 90
Financial assets - Current payables 4
Inventories - EQUITY (11)
IMMOBILIZZAZIONI 86  Share capital 0
Intangible assets 75 Reserves 82
Tangible fixed assets 11 Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 1
Financial fixed assets - Netincome (loss) for the year (94)
CAPITAL EMPLOYED 255 FINANCING SOURCES 255
Key indicators of financial position

On the basis of the above reclassification, indicators of financial position are set out below:

RATIO FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021 % Change

Fixed asset coverage 94.47 % 87.79 % 7.61%
Amounts payable to banks to working capital 30.40 % 39.91 % (23.83) %
Debt ratio 1.31 1.69 (22.49) %
Financial debt ratio 0.44 0.73 (39.73) %
Equity to capital employed 43.21 % 3712 % 16.41 %
Financial charges to turnover 0.32 % 0.49 % (34.69) %
Current ratio 111.54 % 122.56 % (8.99) %
Primary coverage amount (5.699.220.00) (12.690.751.00) 55.09 %
Primary coverage ratio 0.95 0.88 7.95 %
Secondary coverage amount 23.076.595.00 34.814.396.00 (33.72) %
Secondary coverage ratio 1.21 1.32 (8.33) %
Net working capital 12.308.556.00 25.525.604.00 (51.78) %
Acid test margin (17.060.475.00) 543.970.00 (3.236.29) %
Acid test ratio 84.00 % 100.48 % (16.40) %
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Consolidated statement of cash flow

Item FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 Change Change %
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 51,059,053 53,837,305 (2,778,251) -5.16%
a. Cash flows from operating activities 20,633,171 30,294,765 (9,661,593) -31.89%
b. Cash flows from investing activities (17,390,741)  (31,685,009) 14,294,268 -45.11%
c. Cash flows from financing activities (21,081,395) (909,546) (20,171,849) 2217.79%
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a* b * c) (17,838,964) (2,299,790) (15,539,175) 675.68%
d. Cash flow for acquisition of subsidiaries (730,856) (1,010,870) 280,014 -27.70%
e. Net cash and cash equivalents acquired 127,180 532,408 (405,228) -76.11%
(Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and cash equivalents) (d  e) (603,676) (478,462) (125,214) 26.17%
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (atb*c*dzte) 32,616,413 51,059,053 (18,442,640) -36.12%

With reference to the cash flow trend for the period, it should be noted that the Group recorded a decrease in cash and cash
equivalents of approximately € 18.4 million during the year, due to the combined effect of the following factors:

the positive performance of operations, which led to a net positive cash flow of € 20.6 million, to which contributed

both the P&L performance (with an EBITDA of approximately € 24.4 million), and the change in net working capital

(reduction of € 2.3 million in particular due to the trend of trade receivables and payables and inventories) and that of

provisions (reduction by € 1.9 million);

cash flow connected with investments made during the period (for a net outlay of € 17,4 million), primarily relating

to;

o tangible fixed assets, aimed at increasing the production capacity related to on-going projects and those of new
acquisitions (€ 14.4 million);

o intangible fixed assets (€ 2.0 million), referring mainly to the capitalization of development costs;

o financial assets not held as fixed assets (intended to provide the Group with liquidity) totalling € 0.9 million;

cash flows relating to financing activities - with an overall negative effect of € 21.7 million - which include the effect

of the change in long-term debt (increases due to new loan contracted, € 3.0 million, offset by repayments made

during the period in relation to contractual maturities amounting to € 23.8 million) and the reduction (€ 0.9 million)

in short-term bank debt;

finally, the effect of the outflow determined by the change in the consolidation, net of cash acquired (for a net effect

of € 0.6 million), concerning the acquisition of Veicoli S.r.1.

Profit & Loss results

A reclassified income statement is provided below to facilitate a better understanding of the Company's results.

Income Statement

20292022 % 20202021 % Change  Change %
VALUE OF PRODUCTION 181.109.486  100,00% 172,110,229  100.00% 8,999,257 5.23%
- Consumption of raw materials 75.177.627 41,51% 66,089,209 38.40% 9,088,418 13.75%
- General expenses 40.233.543 22,22% 35,491,000 20.62% 4,742,543 13.36%
VALUE-ADDED 65.698.316 36,28% 70,530,020 40.98% (4,831,704) -6.85%
- Payroll costs 39.288.395 21,69% 38,062,875 22.12% 1,225,520 3.22%
- Provisions - 0,00% 300,000 0.17% (300,000) -100.00%
GROSS OPERATING MARGIN 26.409.921 14